OnPoint Course Manager: Section 1 Users & Groups



December 2017

This document contains proprietary and confidential information from OnPoint Digital, Inc. Any reproduction or distribution of these materials in whole or part without the expressed written consent of the company is strictly forbidden.

Table of Contents

1.0	Users	& Groups	.1
1.1	Users	& Groups: Users & Managers	. 2
	1.1.1	Users & Managers: View a User Record	. 4
	1.1.2	Users & Managers: Search for a User	. 5
	1.1.3	Users & Managers: Create a New User (Manual Process)	. 7
		1.1.3.1 Users New User: User Information	10
		1.1.3.2 Users New User: Assignments	11
		1.1.3.4 Users New User: Memberships14	44
		1.1.3.5 Users New User: Test Scores	65
		1.1.3.6 Users New User: History1	76
		1.1.3.7 Users New User: Notes	19
		1.1.3.8 Users New User: Performance	20
		1.1.3.9 Users New User: Mobile	21
		1.1.3.11 Users New User: E-Commerce	24
	1.1.4	Users & Managers: System Roles	24
	1.1.5	Users & Managers: Edit a User or Manager Record	26
		1.1.5.1 Edit User or Manager: Edit Course Status	29
		1.1.5.2 Edit User or Manager: Edit Assessment Set Status	33
		1.1.5.3 Edit User or Manager: Edit Nugget Status	36
		1.1.5.4 Edit User or Manager: Edit Activity Status	39
		1.1.5.5 Edit User or Manager: Edit Event Status	40
	1.1.6	Users & Managers: Delete a User or Manager Record	41
	1.1.7	Users & Managers: Management Sub-Tab	42
1.2	Users	& Groups: Groups	43
	1.2.1	Groups: View a Group Record	44
	1.2.2	Groups: Search for a Group	46
	1.2.3	Groups: Create a New Group	48
		1.2.3.1 New Group: Information	50
		1.2.3.2 New Group: Assignments	50
	1.2.4	Groups: Edit a Group Record	53
	1.2.5	Groups: Delete a Group Record	53
1.3	Users	& Groups: Job Codes	55
	1.3.1	Job Codes: View a Job Code	56
	1.3.2	Job Codes: Search for a Job Code	57
	1.3.3	Job Codes: Create a New Job Code	58
		1.3.3.1 New Job Code: Job Code Information	59
		1.3.3.2 New Job Code: Assignments	60

	1.3.4 Job Codes: Edit a Job Code Record	62
	1.3.5 Job Codes: Delete a Job Code Record	62
1.4	Users & Groups: Locations	64
1.5	Users & Groups: Organization Chart	66
1.6	Users & Groups: Announcements	67
	1.6.1 Announcements: View an Announcement Record	67
	1.6.2 Announcements: Create a New Announcement	68
	1.6.3 Announcements: Edit an Announcement Record	69
	1.6.4 Announcements: Delete an Announcement Record	69
1.7	Users & Groups: Reports	71

1.0 Users & Groups

The first top level menu choice button in the Course Manager's drop down menu system is Users & Groups. When clicked once, this primary level menu option opens to reveal several submenu options that provide direct access to all user- and group-related information and files stored in the shared Course Manager repository. Each related submenu option selected from the Users & Groups Menu will display a table listing of records from the OnPoint database specific to the item selected. The Users & Groups Menu has a number of submenu selections.

Users & Groups	Content	Asses	sments	Skills & Games	Even
Users & Managers	5				
Groups					
Job Codes					
Locations					
Organization Char	t	ł			
Announcements					
Reports					

Figure 1-1 – Users & Groups: Submenu Selections

Users & Groups sub menu selections

- Users & Managers The Users & Managers selection provides a list of all licensed Users & Managers defined and managed in the shared repository. Users & Managers are listed in alphabetical order by last name, and the list includes their unique User Login, their business title or role, as well as other personal and organizational details. Specific user and manager details are accessible and editable by clicking on the User Name link.
- **Groups** The Groups selection provides a list of all defined groups in the shared repository. Groups are displayed in alphabetical order, along with a Group Description, that group's supervisor and status of the group. Specific Group details are accessible by clicking on the Group Name link.
- **Job Codes** The Job Codes selection provides a list of all defined Job Codes in the shared repository. Job Codes are displayed in alphabetical order, along with a Job Code Description, and the status of that group. Specific Job Code details are accessible by clicking on the Job Code Name link.
- **Locations** The Locations selection provides a tree view of all defined locations in the shared repository. Locations are displayed in alphabetical order, in accordance with their position within the tree. Specific location details are accessible by expanding the tree and clicking on the Location Name.
- **Organization Chart** The Organization Chart provides a tree view of the defined hierarchy within the organization. Details are accessible by expanding the tree and clicking on the desired job title.
- **Announcements** The Announcements selection displays a list of announcements stored in the database. Announcements are displayed in alphabetical order, and are listed by the group with which they are associated. The table shows the Display Start Date and Time, Display End Date and Time, Job Code, the Author of the announcement, and if the announcement is urgent or not.
- **Reports** The Reports selection provides a number of preformatted reports used by administrators to report on User/Group data.

1.1 Users & Groups: Users & Managers

The first drop down option under the **Users & Groups** Menu is **Users & Managers**. This selection displays the **Users & Groups: Users** list, a database listing of all current licensed Users & Managers being managed in Course Manager. From this list, you may:

- 1. Select a User, Manager, or Record from the list to review.
- 2. Click on the record to display the details, or edit by clicking on the edit option.
- 3. Click on a letter of the alphabet shown to filter the list by last name
- 4. Click on the Role check boxes to filter the list by role (Users, Managers, Records or Instructors)
- 5. Click the Add User button to create a new user
- 6. Use the **Filter** button to narrow your search for a specific User, Manager or Record. You can also narrow it as Active, Inactive, and Request Delete.
- 7. Use the **Bio Filter** button to narrow your search for specific bio options such as languages, education, or other specific categories.
- 8. Click the clear filter icon to clear out the filters selected



Note: The first displayed list has a default filter that is set to the letter "A". This ensures that Administrators with sites managing hundreds or thousands of Users/Learners/Records need not wait for the list to sort and display all defined names when selected. The list shown in Figure 2-2 below is filtered on the letter "A" and the default role of Users.

Tip: Only Root and Site Administrators have the ability to access the Role filter. Other lower-level managers cannot affect change to other managers of the same level.

l	USERS & GR DUPS: USERS								
	Last Name: A B C D E F G H I J K L M N O P Q R S T U V W X Y Z Show Roles: Users Managers Records Instructors								
	T Filte	er Bio Id Last	Name Login Id	Organization	+ More C	Apply T _x			
	Id 🚹	User Name	User Login	Title	Organization	Role	Status		
	1020	*** Knight, Michael	m.knight	InsideSales,SalesConsultant II	OnPoint Digital, Inc.	User	Active		
	27174	12345, 12345 'testy'	12345@example.com		OnPoint Digital, Inc.	Learner	Active		
	39840	2015, january	january		OnPoint Digital, Inc.	Learner	Active		

Figure 1-2 – Users & Groups: Users Table Display

Users are listed alphabetically by Last Name. The User list displays the following information:

	Users & Groups: User List							
Element	Description							
Id:	Unique record identifier for the displayed User or Manager.							
	Tip: These are generated sequentially so higher numbered records are always associated with newer records. Id numbers are auto-generated by the system and are never reused.							
User Name:	Assigned name of the User/Learner/Record/Manager/etc. Click the User Name to view more details about the user, or to edit the record.							
	Tip: For tracking and management purposes, it is important that every person in an organization have a unique User Account assigned to them rather than using shared							

	Users & Groups: User List						
Element	Description						
	login IDs for a group of people. Unique login credentials make both organizational and individual-level reporting possible.						
User Login:	User/Learner's assigned email address or primary Login Id. Tip: All users don't need to have an email address defined for them and in some environments this may not apply. If your organization uses some form of unique login Id and also has email addresses for users, you may choose to use the login identifier here and additionally record the user's email address in the email field within the user's record.						
Title:	User/Learner organizational title.						
Organization:	Organization with which the User/Learner is associated.						
Role:	Designates whether the named person from the User list is managed as a User, Learner, or a Record. The default setting is "All". When using the Manager or Both role filters, this column also designates whether the named person from the Manager list manages as a Root Administrator, Site Administrator, Course Coordinator, Content Administrator, Event Manager, Group Manager, Reporting Manager or Document Manager. Tip: To see a list of Records, use the Filter button and under the User Role field, select Record or select the role filter checkbox if you are a Root or Site Administrator.						
Status:	Designates the Status of the specified user. Users can be Active, Inactive, or Marked for Deletion. The User list is automatically set to filter this list by those with a status of "Active". This filter can be changed using the Filter button.						

Other User: List - Related Information:

Some additional features can be found at the bottom of the User list:

- **User Count** At the bottom left of the Users: List table is an active count of all the current users managed in the database (as filtered).
- **Results Page Listing** User & Manager Lists with more than 50 records are separated over multiple pages. These pages can be navigated using the Results Page Listing at the bottom left of the User: List screen. Pages can be accessed by the numbered pages, or navigated using the arrow buttons.
- Color Keys Users listed in the User: List table are considered "Active" but may be flagged as "Request Delete" or "Inactive" by an administrator. When any defined users have been flagged as "Request Delete" or "Inactive", a legend (or reminder key) appears at the lower left of the Users: List table indicating at least one user has been marked as "Request Delete" (the record will be highlighted in **Pink**) or "Inactive"(the record will be highlighted in **Yellow**). This will only show if the users that are of Inactive or Request Delete status are in the filtered list. The list defaults to only showing active users, so initially no color keys will be present at the bottom of the User: List table.



Figure 1-3 – Users & Groups: Users Table Legend

This detail applies to all table listings within the Users & Groups primary drop-down menu.

1.1.1 Users & Managers: View a User Record

The User record display provides a detailed description of the personal and organizational information for every licensed user and manager defined in the Course Manager database. To view a User or Manager record, select the User you wish to view from the **Users & Groups: Users** list by clicking on the User and the **Users & Groups: User** record for that User will appear.

USERS & GROUPS	JSERS & GROUPS: USER									
Information	Assignments	Recommendations	Memberships	Test Scores	History	Notes	Performance	Mobile	Profile	
User I	: 27128					Instruct	or: No			
Nam	: Care, Bear	r			Custom Fie	elds				
Ema	l: carebear@r	mlearning.com				Count	ry:			
Login I	d: carebear@r	mlearning.com				Yes	s?:			
Password Expire	s: 04-Aug-201	4 Expire				Tshirt Siz	te:			
System Rol	: User					Color Choic	:e:			
Account Expire	5:					Muffine	es:			
Title	: User					Drir	nk:			
Organizatio	n: company		Desk:							
Addres	5:					Mothe	er:			
User Time Zon	e: US/Eastern		City of birth:							
Country Cod	e: 1 - Work		High school mascot:							
Telephon	91					Departme	nt:			
Mobil	e: null					Anim	al:			
Preferred Languag	e: English				Audience Fi	eld Selectio	on:			
Foreign I	d:		Cup:							
Preferred Notification	s: Standard, E	mail, SMS,				LO	B:			
Statu	s: Active					Sta	te:			
Edit C Refresh User Actions C Assignment V						Assignment Views				
Created Jun-5-2014 9:18 PM by OnPoint, Administrator Updated Jun-5-2014 9:18 PM by OnPoint, Administrator, Updates										

Figure 1-4 – Users & Groups: User Information

The User record has a number of submenu tabs covering all of the definitions and parameters for the selected User, as follows:

- A. **Information** Tab 1 "Information" includes fields for user Id, name, email address, title, business address, contact information, user status, etc., plus any defined custom fields to the right.
- B. Assignments Tab 2 "Assignments" lists all of the current Assignments for that user, including all of their Courses, Assessment Sets, Nuggets, Activities, Events, and Skill Profile/Curriculum assignments. These assignment fields may be manually updated at any time by clicking the Assign link. An Archive link is also presented that, when clicked, will transfer previously completed assignments to a User's history which can be viewed via the History sub-tab defined below.

- C. **Recommendations-** Tab 3 "Recommendations" lists all of the current Recommendations for that user, including all of their Courses, Assessment Sets, Nuggets, Activities, Events, and Skill Profile/Curriculum assignments. These recommendation fields may be manually updated at any time by clicking the **Recommend** link, and removed when desired. Recommended items will show who made the recommendation, the date it was made, and also allow reinforcement.
- D. **Memberships** Tab 4 "Memberships" lists all of the current membership associations for that user, including all of their Group Memberships, Job Code Assignments, Location Assignments, Event Location Preference, Organization Chart Assignment, and Shared Mobile Devices.
- E. **Test Scores** Tab 5 "Test Scores" displays all of the Course Test Scores, Assessment Set Test Scores, Nugget Test Scores, SCORM Course Scores and User Survey Results for the selected user. This summary gives the Id, Date, Attempt, Score, Status and Assessment. The **View** link displays a record of the assessment including questions, answers provided, and graded score if applicable.
- F. History Tab 6 "History" displays all of the completed and archived assignments associated with the selected user. An Unarchive link is available that allows any assignments previously archived to be moved back into a user's assignments sub-tab. This tab also displays a comprehensive history of this particular user's module access. Clicking the Show Module Access History link will open a pop up window with a record of access by this user to any and all applications and the date and time of each access.
- G. **Notes** Tab 7 "Notes" allows managers to add **Notes** to a user's record about the user or for other managers to see regarding the user. These notes are not visible to the user.
- H. **Performance** Tab 8 "Performance" appears if the optional Performance Evaluation Module has been purchased. This feature set allows evaluations to be selected and assigned to the user that will be routed based on a defined Organizational Chart.
- I. **Mobile** Tab 9 "Mobile" displays more detailed mobile information for this user such as device information, , etc. This information is necessary for SMS messaging and CellCast nugget delivery.
- J. **Profile-** Tab 10 "Profile" shows any user specific bio information that has been collected from the user in the My Bio area of the my profile link in the portal. An administration configuration setting can be made that allows admins to edit user bio data.

Action buttons at the lower left allow you to Edit, Refresh or Return to the List of users. Action buttons to the lower right allow you to set Login Action and Reset User History with the **User Actions** button. The **Assignment Views** button allows you to view Assignment Status for the user, view their Competency Matrix, User Certificates, External Certifications, or Access History.

1.1.2 Users & Managers: Search for a User

Under **Users & Groups: Users** is a list of all current Users and Managers in your Course Manager repository. Users and Managers are listed alphabetically by Last Name. To find a specific user, you may:

- 1. Scroll through the list until you locate the user record
- 2. Select the letter of the Last Name to narrow your search
- 3. Use the Filter or Bio button to narrow your search for a specific user

User Id:	Equals	٣			
Last Name:	Includes	*			
First Name:	Includes	*			
User Title:	Includes	٣			
User Email:	Includes	¥			
Organization:	Includes	*			
Login Id:	Includes	•			
Time Zone:	Equals	٣		¥	
User Role:	Equals	٣		٣	
Date Created:	On/After	٣			
Status:	Equals	٣	Active	× *	
Country	Equals	٣		*	
Yes?	Equals	٣			
Tshirt Size	Equals	٣		٣	
Color Choice	Equals	*			
Muffines	Equals	٣			

Figure 1-5 – Users & Groups: User Filter Selection Screen

The Advanced User Filter will allow you to search for a user by any of the following search criteria that is listed below.

	Users & Groups: User Filter							
Element	Description							
	 Use the drop down menu for additional filter options: equals - filters for a match of a letter or text string. begins with - filters for all users beginning with the criteria includes - filters for all users that include the criteria ends with - filters for all users ending with the criteria. not equal to - filters out everything matching this entry less than - filters all matches less than the criteria. greater than - filters all matches greater than the criteria 							
User Id:	Allows for a quick search of the User Id field.							
Last Name:	Search by the last name of the user.							
First Name:	Search by the first name of the user.							
User Title:	Search by the title of the user. Use the drop down menu and enter some descriptive data.							
User Email:	Search by the email of the user.							
Organization:	Search by the name of the organization for which the user is associated. Use the drop down menu and enter some descriptive data.							
Login Id:	Search by the Login Id. Use the drop down menu and enter some descriptive data.							
Time Zone:	Search by the user's Time Zone. Use the drop down menu to choose a time zone option.							
User Role:	Search by the user's role (User, Learner, or Record), or by the Manager's role. Use the drop down menu to choose a role. The roles available to search depends upon the level of the administrator that is logged in.							

Date Created:	Search for all users created on/after or before XX date.					
Status:	Search by the user's status (Active, Inactive, or Delete requested).					
* Additional Fields can include Bio Filters (if used) and any other custom fields (Client specific).						



Note: The most common search is by Last Name, begins with. Using the Filter also makes it easy to get a list of users by Organization in the event you have customers or partners that are users in your learning system.

When you are finished entering your selection criteria, click any of the following:

Apply	To save changes and start the Search.
× Close	To close the Filter window and return to the User list without making any changes.
C Default	To reset the criteria to the default options (All Active Courses).
1	To clear all criteria (even default settings) so that you can start again.

1.1.3 Users & Managers: Create a New User (Manual Process)

There are several different ways to create new User accounts in Course Manager. The method an Administrator selects depends on the "usage scenario" they require at a given time. New users can be added in the following ways:

- 1. **Primary Method -** Create a new user by clicking the **Add** button accessible from the **Users & Groups: Users** screen. This method is ideal for adding one or a few new users on an ad hoc basis.
- 2. **Optional Method A -** Define a large group of users in a spreadsheet template and import these users in mass using the Import Users utility (accessible via the Administration: Import/Export sub menu).
- 3. **Optional Method B** Allow new users to auto-register themselves via the web or a walkup workstation using the OnPoint E-Commerce ("OPEC") application (an optional purchase; See OnPoint E-commerce Administration Guide for more information).
- 4. **Optional Method C -** OPREG. Users can be directed to a webpage that will allow for self registration. They will be asked to fill in a specific form and submit. Once submitted it will create this user in the table.
- 5. **Optional Method D** Custom integration services are available to add users to the system via custom applets that tie to other directory services (LDAP, Active Directory, Payroll/HRIS systems, etc.) so that user status can be updated automatically (new, inactive, terminated, etc.).

To create a new User record manually via the primary method described above, select **Users & Groups: Users**, then select the **Add User** button.

USERS & GROUPS: USERS								
+ Add	✓ User Wizard							
Last Nam	e: A B C D E F G H I J K L M N O P Q R S T U							
T Filter	T Bio Id Last Name							

Figure 1-6A – Users & Groups: New User Record-Add

Complete all of the data fields described below the screen example as required in your environment.

USERS & GROUPS: US	ER EDIT	
* First Name:		
* Last Name:		
* Email Address:		
* Login Id:		
* Password:	« Rando	omize (min length 5)
Password Hint:		
System Role:	Learner 🔻	
Account Expires:		
Title:		
Organization:	OnPoint Digital, Inc.	
Address:		6
User Time Zone:	US/Eastern 🔻	
Telephone Country Code:	Canada (1) 🔻	United States 🗙 🔻
Telephone Work:		
Telephone Mobile:		
Preferred Language:	English •	
Foreign Id:		
Preferred Notifications:	Standard Email SMS	🖉 Push
Status:	● Active [●] Inactive [●] Delete	

Figure 1-6B – Users & Groups: New User Record

Complete the following data fields described below:

Users & Groups: New User Record						
Element	Description					
First Name:	Enter the User's first name (Required Field).					
Last Name:	Enter the User's last name (Required Field).					
Email Address:	Enter the User's email address.					
Login Id:	Enter the User's login name/Id (Required Field).					
Password:	Enter the User's initial Password (Required Field) . The actual password will be hidden from view once this has been entered the first time. You may click the link next to the box "Randomize" to create a random password.					

Password Hint:	A word or phrase that will be used as the password reminder.				
	Note: The hint is automatically emailed to the User's documented Email account whenever they click the "Password hint" link on their login screen. A User can edit their Password Hint via the My Profile link in the Portal.				
Title:	The User's Title within the organization.				
System Role:	The assigned level of the User or Manager				
	Note: Whereas "Learners" must progress through a Course sequentially (view Page 1 followed by Page 2), a "User" may jump around within a Course as they desire and review pages in any order they choose. Record-level users have no access to the system and are included for record keeping and reporting purposes only. The level of Manager displayed and able to be added depends on the level of the administrator that is logged in.				
Account Expires:	A date can be specified for the user's account to expire or be inactive.				
Organization:	The name of the Organization the user is associated with. It's important to complete this field when multiple organizations share the same Learning Center (e.g., partners, customers, contractors).				
Address:	The primary business address of the user.				
User Time Zone:	Indicates the Time Zone user is in. Select the Time Zone from the drop down.				
	Note: This field can be updated by the user via the My Profile link in the Portal, in the event they are traveling outside their default time zone.				
Telephone Country Code:	Select the Country Code for the user's telephone number(s).				
Telephone Work:	The user's current work telephone number.				
Telephone Mobile:	The user's current (mobile, smart phone, etc.) telephone number.				
Preferred Language:	Indicates the language table the user prefers. This designation will drive the Portal and Content Viewer applications to display in the language entered. This can be tied to the User's browser as well.				
Foreign Id:	Optional Id used to tie a user to another system of record.				
Preferred Notifications:	Indicates whether notifications should be sent out to the user in a method in addition to that used in normal Notifications to the Portal. If the User desires this, you may specify in what format those notifications should be transmitted: as Email, SMS messages, and/or Push Notifications.				
Status:	 Indicates the Status of the user. The default is Active. Active (User is currently active) Inactive (User is not currently active) Request Delete (User account no longer needed) 				
Custom Fields: (Up to 20)	There may be up to additional fields with customized captions that have been defined by the Site Administrator for your organization. These fields can be used for reporting purposes. Custom fields are defined under the Administration drop down. Enter in any applicable data.				

At any time you may click **Save** to save any changes that have been made or **Cancel** to cancel the action and exit the page without making any changes.

After creating a new user record and saving your entries, click the **Refresh** button to make sure all your changes are made and displayed.



Note: All user information fields can be edited at any time with additional or updated information. Click the **Edit** button to update the User information fields of a User record.

1.1.3.1 Users New User: User Information

Once an Administrator has created and saved a new User record, the **Users & Groups: User** screen will display, including a number of sub-tabs that define the User (as previously summarized in Section 2.1.1). The default view is the User Information tab.

Users & Groups	Content	Asses	sments	Skills & Gam	es Events &	Activities	Notifi	ations	Administra	ion	🚮 На	ome 김 He	elp 💽 Logou
USERS & GROUI	PS: USE	R											
Information	Assign	ments	Recom	mendations	Memberships	Test S	cores	History	Notes	Performance	Mobile	Profile	
User	Id: 102	:0							Instructor:	No			
Na	me: ***	* Knight	, Michae	el			Cu	stom Fie	lds				
En	nail: test								Country:	United States			
Login	Id: m.k	night							Yes?:				
Password Expi	res: 14-	Mar-2015	5 Expire	2					Tshirt Size:	м			
System R	ole: Use	er -						C	olor Choice:				
Account Expi	res:								Muffines:				
т	itle: Insi	ideSales,	SalesCon	sultant II					Drink:				
Organizat	ion: OnF	Point Digi	tal, Inc.						Desk:				
Addr	ess:								Mother:				
User Time Zo	one: US/	Eastern							City of birth:				
Country Co	ode: 1-	US						High sch	nool mascot:				
Telepho	one:							(Department:				
Mol	bile:								Animal:				
Preferred Langua	age: Eng	lish					Aud	lience Fie	ld Selection:				
Foreign	Id:								Cup:				
Preferred Notification	ons: Sta	ndard, Er	nail,						LOB:				
Sta	tus: Acti	ive							State:				
🕼 Edit 🛛 😂 🕻	Refresh	▲Lis	st							¢.	Jser Actions	Assig	nment Views

Figure 1-7 – Users & Groups: Information Sub-Tab

A set of Action Buttons appear across the bottom left of the page, including:

C Edit	Allows you to view and edit the data fields for the selected record.
C Refresh	Refreshes the web page with all recent updates (if needed).
▲List	Returns you to the list of users.

Additional Action buttons appearing across the bottom right of the screen include:

User Actions	Login Action: Reset User History: Allows an Administrator to "zero out" a user's previous test scores and reset their Course progress status to "Not Attempted." Click the Reset History button to initiate and complete the reset process.
Assignment Views	Assignment Status : Allows an Administrator to gain a quick view of the User's Assignment Status to date. The view displays all assignments including Curriculums, Skill Profiles, Courses, Assessment Sets, Nuggets, Activities, Events, and Legacy Data as well as their status and relevant scores. [This table will be

empty for a newly created user.] Competency Matrix : Allows an Administrator to view the user's Competency Matrix, showing the progress of all assignments, organized by any Skill Profiles to which the user may have been assigned.
Note : This Competency Matrix is the same matrix that the user can see under the My Status tab in the Portal.
User Certificates: This is a single location for an Admin to see standard and dynamic certificates earned by the user.
Access History: This provides a log of users accessing the system based on the module accessed. (Mobile, OPPortal, OPPM, OPCM, OPDoc, OPUX)
Trigger Execution Log: This provides Admin view into triggers created for user, primarily used for troubleshooting.

1.1.3.2 Users New User: Assignments

Once a new User record has been created and defined, Administrators may want to add assignments to the User manually. Assignments can include Courses, Assessment Sets, Nuggets, Activities, Events, or Skill Profiles. Since the newly created user has just been defined, no assignments will be displayed to start with.

Tip: If your organization has the OnPoint LMS integrated with an internal HRIS or other system that regularly feeds user import detail, it is likely that those imports will automatically drive user assignments. It may be that you will not need to make manual assignments to users here under this sub-tab. Assignments can also be made at the Group level or via Skill Profiles, which also automatically applies all associated assignments. For example, if a New Hire Orientation Skill Profile is created with 10 courses in it, and that Skill Profile is assigned to a Group called New Hire Sales Staff – January 2016, then all members of that group will be automatically assigned all ten courses in the Skill Profile. No manual assignments would need to be made here at the User level.

If you would like to make assignments at the User level, click the "Assignments" Tab 2.

Inf	ormation	Assignments	Recommendations	Memberships	Test Scores	History
or. **	* Knight	Michael (Id:1	6			
• Cou	no Assia	amonto.	Assign	Archive		
Cou	rse Assigi	liments	Assign	Archive		
Id	Course		C	lick an Assign I	ink to	Due Date
151	Mobile L	earning Comes of	fAge! ma	ke direct assign	nments	
Acc	occmont 9	Sot Assignments	s Assign	Archive		
, M22	essment a	et Assignmente	s Assign /	AICHIVE		
10	Assessm	ient Set			tatus	Due Date
30	test liker	t		r	vot attempted	
• Nug	get Assig	nments	Assign	Archive		
Id	Nugget			s	tatus	Due Date
77	10 Minut	te Audio w/ Asses	sment [Antique]	P	lot attempted	
151	Brandon	: Change Is Good	1	N	lot attempted	
335	Gamifica	tion 101		N	lot attempted	
198	iPhone G	Guide [ePub version	on]	N	lot attempted	
337	OPCA MI	P3 ASAP OMG		N	lot attempted	
317	PLOGCa	st		N	lot attempted	
42	Respons	ibility		N	lot attempted	
190	Sample I	Boat Owner's Mar	nual [Metatag]	N	lot attempted	
381	Tester N	lugget		N	lot attempted	
196	Tillman ·	- The Skateboardi	ing Dog [Description]	١	lot attempted	
Act	ivity Assig	gnments	Assign /	Archive		
Id	Activity				Status	
30	Activity	Upload 1			Pending	
Eve	nt Assiani	ments	Assian	Archive		
T.d.	Fuent				Ctature	
IU	2008-20	10 Performance I	Hanagement - Informa	tion 9 Lindates	Status	
499	2008-20	dore	management - informa	non or opdates		
560	The Joy	of Potatoes				
ski	I Profile /	Assignments	Assian	Archive Update S	itatus	

Figure 1-8-Users & Groups: Assignments

This screen displays the assignments for the User, including:

Users & Groups: Assignments Sub-Tab page						
Element	Description					
Course Assignments:	Indicates which Courses the user is currently assigned to take, along with the Completion Status of each, the Due Date, Recertify, Last Completion, and Next Recertify. Click the Assign link to add new Course assignments. Click Archive to remove completed Courses.					
Assessment Set Assignments:	Indicates which standalone Assessments the user is currently assigned to take, along with the Completion Status of each, the Due Date, Recertify, Last Completion, and Next Recertify. Click the Assign link to add new Assessment Set assignments. Click Archive to remove completed Assessment Sets.					
Nugget Assignments:	Indicates which Nuggets the user is currently assigned to take, along with the Completion Status of each, the Due Date, Recertify, Last Completion, and Next Recertify. Click the Assign link to add new Nugget assignments. Click Archive to remove completed Nuggets.					
Activity Assignments:	Indicates which Activities the user is currently assigned to complete, along with the CompletionStatus of each. Click the Assign link to add new Activity assignments.					

	Click Archive to remove completed Activities.
Event Assignments:	Indicates the Events in which the user is currently assigned to participate, along with the Approval Status. Click the Assign link to add new Event assignments. Click Archive to remove completed Events.
Skill Profile Assignments:	Indicates which Skill Profiles the user is currently assigned to, along with details including Type, Status, Completed, and Assigned. Click the Assign link to add new Skill Profile assignments. Click Archive to remove completed Skill Profiles.

All user assignment fields can be updated at any time with new or updated assignments. No **Edit** button is required to update the assignment of a User record. The following table provides detailed instructions on making assignments for each of the system object types available.

Users & Groups: Assign Links					
Element	Description				
Course Assignments Assign Link:	When you click an Assign link, a listing of all available Assignments will display in the column on the right and a list of all assigned items will display on the left. Course assignments are selected by clicking the checkbox next to the desired course(s) from the right-hand column (it is possible to assign more than one Course at a time). For environments with multitudes of available Courses, a Filter button is available that can help you narrow the available list. Click the Assign button to commit the assignments. Click the Finished button at the top left to return to the Assignments sub-tab screen. To Unassign an Assignment, simply select the checkbox next to the desired course(s) from the left-hand column and then click the Unassign button to commit.				

USERS & GROUPS: COURSE ASSIGNMENTS User: *** Knight, Michael (Id:1020)	issign 🕨	Assign Check items to assign or rem	ove and click either Assign or Unassign
Assigned Courses (check to remove)		Available Courses (check to assign)	▼ Filter
Mobile Learning Comes of Age!		Filtered Li	ist 🔺
		**Brightstar sample course for MSC Mol	bility
		10 Ignition Sources to be aware of - Affi	liated FM Podcast
		10 Important Activities to Perform When FM Podcast	High Winds Threaten - Affiliated

Figure 1-9 – Users & Groups: Course Assignments Screen

Users & Groups: Assign Links					
Element	Description				
Assessment Set Assignments Assign Link:	These work similarly to Course Assignments described above.				
Nugget Assignments Assign Link:	These work similarly to Course Assignments described above.				

Activity Assignments Assign Link:	These work similarly to Course Assignments described above. Tip: Once an Activity is selected, it will be immediately assigned to the user, so be sure of your selection before you make it.
---	--

	Users & Groups: Assign Links					
Element	Description					
Event Assignments Assign Link:	These work similarly to Course Assignments described above. The available list of Events defaults to current date forward.					
	Tip: An additional Filter button allows you to Show Past Events . This is useful if you need to add an event assignment to a user's record in order to enter a status, but the session occurred in the past. This is often the case when entering user history from a previous system or time period.					
Skill Profile Assignments	These work similarly to Course Assignments described above.					
Assign Link:	Tip: Once a Skill Profile is selected, it will be immediately assigned to the user, so be sure of your selection before you make it. It is especially important to be cautious here, because the assignment of a Skill Profile typically carries with it the auto assignment of numerous courses, events, etc.					

Refer to Section 1.1.5 for additional detail on editing user assignments.

1.1.3.4 Users New User: Memberships

Once the assignments for the new User have been defined, Administrators may choose to add one or more Membership assignments. Users can be members of one or more defined Groups, can have one or multiple Job Codes, can belong to a Location, have an Event Location Preference, may have a position on the Organizational Chart, can have a Mentor, and Shared Mobile Devices. Remember that a newly created User record (created manually, versus import from an HRIS system) will not have any defined Memberships to start with.

JERE & GROU	PS: USER								
Information	Assignments	Recommendations	Memberships	Test Scores	History	Notes	Performance	Mobile	Profile
lser: *** Knight,	Michael (Id:1020))							
Group Members	hip	Assign							
Id Group									
1073 Knight I	Rider								
1049 <u>Testing</u>	Group - Complete	e Sample Content							
Click a group nam	e to set or clear it	t as the user's primary	aroup						
chere group han			9. o op						
Job Code Assia	nments	Assian							
Id Job Coo	le								
Id Job Coc Click a job code to	set or clear it as	the user's primary job	code						
Id Job Coc Click a job code to	set or clear it as	the user's primary job	code						
Id Job Coo Click a job code to Location Assign	e set or clear it as ment	the user's primary job Assign	code						
Id Job Coo Click a job code to Location Assign	le o set or clear it as ment	the user's primary job Assign	code						
Id Job Coo Click a job code to Location Assign	le o set or clear it as ment	the user's primary job Assign	code						
Id Job Coc Click a job code to Location Assign	le o set or clear it as ment Preference	the user's primary job Assign Assign	code						
Id Job Coc Click a job code to Location Assign	le o set or clear it as ment Preference	the user's primary job Assign Assign	code						
Id Job Coc Click a job code to Location Assign	ie o set or clear it as ment Preference	the user's primary job Assign Assign	code						
Id 3ob Coc Click a job code to Location Assign Event Location I	le set or clear it as ment Preference	the user's primary job Assign Assign	code						
Id 3ob Coc Click a Job code to Location Assign Event Location I Organization Ch	le , set or clear it as ment Preference wart Assignment	the user's primary job Assign Assign : Assign	code						
Id 3ob Coc Click a job code to Location Assign Event Location I Organization Ch	le set or clear it as ment Preference wart Assignment	the user's primary job Assign Assign : Assign	code						
Id 3ob Coc Click a job code to Location Assign Event Location I Organization Ch Mentor	le o set or clear it as ment Preference nart Assignment	the user's primary job Assign Assign : Assign	code						
Id 3ob Coc Click a job code to Location Assign Event Location I Organization Ch Mentor	le ment Preference	the user's primary job Assign Assign : Assign	code						
Id 3ob Coc Click a job code to Location Assign Event Location I Organization Ch Mentor	le o set or clear it as ment Preference	the user's primary job Assign Assign : Assign	code						
Id 3ob Coc Click a job code to Location Assign Event Location I Organization Ch Mentor Shared Mobile I	le o set or clear it as ment Preference wart Assignment Devices	the user's primary job Assign Assign : Assign Assign	code						

Figure 1-10 – Users & Groups: Memberships Sub-Tab

	This screen	displays the	memberships	assigned for	or the User	based on	the headings below:
--	-------------	--------------	-------------	--------------	-------------	----------	---------------------

	Users & Groups: Memberships Sub-Tab				
Element	Description				
Group Membership:	Indicates all the Groups for which the selected user is a member as well as denotes the Primary Group under which the user directly reports. Normally users are members of multiple groups. The Primary Group designation drives which portal layout the user will see upon login. Click the Assign link to add the user to a Group. Click the checkbox next to the desired group(s), click the Assign button to make the assignment, and click Finished to return to the Memberships sub-tab screen. To unassign a user from a group, click the Assign link next to Group Membership. Click the checkbox next to the desired group(s), click the Unassign button to remove the user from the group, and click Finished to return to the Memberships sub-tab screen.				
Job Code Assignments:	Displays the Job Code(s) this user has been assigned. Normally a user will have just one job code that represents the main role he/she fulfills within the organization.				
Location Assignment:	Displays the Location that represents the primary physical location the user works in. The Location is selected using the folder tree view. Simply expand the appropriate level to find and select the most descriptive level available.				
Event Location Preference:	This field allows admins to see and/or set a default location preference for a user. If the user has set their own default location, that will be displayed here.				
Organization Chart Assignment:	Indicates where within the company's Organizational Chart the user is positioned. Click the Assign link to select a level and role. Once selected, details regarding the associated Manager for this user will also be displayed.				
Shared Mobile Devices:	This field allows admins to set a shared mobile device membership, this is used when users within the same physical location share one or multiple mobile devices. The device itself is defined as the "group" so that all users in that location can access the device who are members of that group.				



Tip: Again, if your organization has the OnPoint LMS integrated with an internal HRIS or other system that regularly feeds user import detail, it is likely that those imports will automatically drive user assignments, including memberships. It may be that you will not need to make manual assignments to users here under this sub-tab.

1.1.3.5 Users New User: Test Scores

The next option Tab 5 for a User record is the Test Scores tab. From this submenu, Administrators can view detailed test results for the Users, including Course Test Scores, Assessment Set Test Scores, Nugget Test Scores, SCORM Course Scores, and User Survey Results.

Data fields for test scores set up include the below categories:

Users & Groups: Test Scores Sub-Tab					
Element	Description				
Course Test Scores:	Provides detailed information pertaining to all test scores associated with a Course, including Id, date of the test, the attempt of the user to take the test, the score and status and a link to View the Assessment and see the user's answers and the correct answers.				
Assessment Set Test Scores:	Provides detailed information about all test scores associated with any Assessment Set, including Id, date of the test, the attempt of the user to take the test, the score and status, and a link to View the Assessment and see the user's answers and the correct answers.				
Nugget Test Scores:	Provides detailed information about all test scores associated with any Nuggets assigned to this user, including Id,date of the test, the attempt of the user to take the test, the score and status, and a link to View the Assessment and see the user's answers and the correct answers.				
SCORM Course Scores:	Provides detailed information about all test scores associated with any SCORM Course's assigned to this user, including the SCO Id, Status, Max Score and User Score				
User Survey Results:	Provides all survey detail associated with any courses, nuggets, or assessment sets assigned to this user, including Id,date of the survey, the attempt of the user to take the survey, status, and a link to View the Survey and see the user's responses.				

USEF	RS & GROUI	PS: USER									
	Information	Assignments	Recommendations	Memberships	Test Scores	History	Notes	Performance	Mobile	Profile	
lser:	Murray, Suk	(Id:29605)									
Cou	rse Test Sco	res									
Id	Course/	Test Date Atter	mpt Score Status As:	sessment							
Ass	essment Set	Test Scores									
Id	Assessn	nent Set/Test	Date	Attempt Score S	tatus Assessme	nt					
26	Mobile /	Assessment Set									
	Mobile (Question Types	Nov-17-2014 9:38 PM	1 25.00 F	ailed View						
Nug	iget Test Sco Nugget/	res Test Date	e Atte	mpt Score Stal	tus Assessi	nent					
77	10 Minu Non G	te Audio w/ Asse raded Test Nov	ssment [Antique] 18-2014 2:24 PM	1 100.00 Con	npleted Viev						
Sco	rm Course S	cores									
Id	Scorm (Course SCO Id	Status Max Score Use	r Score							
Use	r Survey Res	sults									
	Name	Turne Current Dat									

Figure 1-11 – Users & Groups: Test Scores Sub-Tab

1.1.3.6 Users New User: History

The next option Tab 6 for a User record is the History tab. From this submenu, Administrators can view assignments that have been archived for this user. Archived assignments no longer appear in the user's portal as active assignments. This helps to keep the list of assignments manageable from year to year.

USERS	6 & GROUI	PS: USER						
II II	nformation	Assignments	Recomme	endations	Member	ships	Test Scores	History
User: •	** Knight, I	Michael (Id:102	0)					
Cours	se Assignm	ents						
Id	Course	Status						
Re-ce	rtified Course	es (click for detai	ls):					
Asse	ssment Set	Assignments						
Id	Assessn	ment Set Status						
Re-ce	rtified Asses	sment Sets (click	for details):					
Nugg	et Assignm	ients						
Id	Nugget			St	atus			
195	Test Im	pactica - animati	on, images,	audio No	ot attempted			
Re-ce	rtified Nugge	ets (click for detai	ls):					
Activ	ity Assignn	nents		Unarchiv	e			
Id	Activity	Due Date Com	pleted Date	Status				
Even	t Assignme	nts		Unarchiv	e			
Id	Event (Completed (click f	for status)					
Re-ce	rtified Events	5:						
Skill	Profile Assi	ignments		Unarchiv	e			
Id	Skill Pro	file Started Cor	mpleted					
Lega	cy Data							
Title	Date Desc	ription Score/St	atus Hours					
Show M	odule Access	s History						

Figure 1-12A – Users & Groups: History Sub-Tab

Users & Groups: History Sub-Tab				
Element	Description			
Course Assignments:	Indicates all the archived Course assignments for the selected user. To unarchive any Course, click the corresponding status link, update the archive status condition by clicking the Unarchive to Assignments button to the far right. The Course will be removed from the History sub-tab and added back under the Assignments sub-tab.			
Assessment Set Assignments:	Indicates all of the archived Assessment Set assignments for the selected user. To unarchive any Assessment Set, follow the same steps as described for Course Assignments above.			
Nugget Assignments:	Indicates all of the archived Nuggets for the selected user. To remove a Nugget from archive, follow the same steps as described for Course Assignments above.			
Activity Assignments:	Indicates all of the archived Activities for the selected user. To unarchive any Activity, click the Unarchive link.			
Event Assignments:	Indicates all of the archived Events for the selected User. To unarchive any Event, click the Unarchive link.			
Skill Profile Assignments:	Indicates all of the archived Skill Profiles for the selected user. To unarchive any Skill Profile, click the Unarchive link.			
Legacy Data:	This area of the history tab displays any detail imported from a third party system that the customer requested in order to create a full view of the users history.			

The History tab displays the items from a user's record that have been archived, including:

The below are screen shots to show how to take an item that has been archived for a user and place it back within their assignments tab. You must first click on the status listed next to the course. The status is highlighted in the example below.

JSERS 8	GROU	PS: USER					
Info	rmation	Assignments	Recommendation	ons Membe	rships	Test Scores	History
lser: ***	Knight, I	Michael (Id:1020)				
Course	Assignm	ents					
Id	Course	Status					
Re-certif	ied Course	es (click for detail	s):				
Assessr	ment Set	Assignments					
Id	Assessm	nent Set Status					
Re-certif	ied Assess	sment Sets (click f	for details):				
Nugget	Assignm	ents					
Id	Nugget			Status			
195	Test Im	pactica - animatio	n, images, audio	Not attempted	t i		
Re-certif	ìed Nugge	ts (click for detail	s):				

Figure 1-12B – Users & Groups: History Sub-Tab - Status Link

After selecting the status in the history you will receive a new screen labeled **Nugget Status View**. This will display the class and the information regarding when it was assigned/completed and when access to the course began and ended. At the bottom of the screen there is an option to **Unarchive to Assignments**. Select this

option. Once completed the user will then be able to see the nugget assignment view again and this time it should show that the nugget is now listed under the assignments tab.

USERS & GRO	OUPS: NUGGET STATUS VIEW
← Finished	
User:	*** Knight, Michael
Nugget:	Test Impactica - animation, images, audio (#195)
Approved:	Yes
Assigned:	13-Jan-2015 02:24 PM
Due Date:	
Completed:	
Access Begins:	
Access Ends:	31-Jan-2100 11:59 PM
Nugget Status:	Not attempted
Mobile Sync:	Yes
Recommended:	System
	Change Status Update Status Unarchive to Assignments
	Certificates
Assessments:	Test Type Attempt Date Taken Score Status Action
Access History:	Date & Time Action Duration Access Status Client

Figure 1-12C – Users & Groups: History Sub-Tab - Unarchive Link

USERS & GROUPS: USER											
Information Assignments Recommendations Memberships Test Scores History											
User: *** Knight, Michael (Id:1020)											
Course Assignments											
Id Course	Status										
Re-certified Courses (click for details):											
Assessment Se	t Assignments										
Id Assess	ment Set Status		he Nugget is n ger listed here	o as							
Re-certified Assessment Sets (click for details): the Assignments											
Nugget Assignments											
Id Nugget Status											
Re-certified Nuggets (click for details):											

Figure 1-12D – Users & Groups: History Sub-Tab - Updated Course Status

1.1.3.7 Users New User: Notes

The next option Tab 7 for a User record is the Notes tab. From this submenu, Administrators can view and add any necessary notes regarding the user. This feature is not meant to be a help desk log or HR-related issue field, but rather is designed to allow administrators to add a brief notation that may need to be tracked in association with the user. For example, John Doe uses an older PC from home, and often has trouble streaming certain types of content during an online course.

USERS & GROUPS: USER											
Information	Assignments	Recommendations	Memberships	Test Scores	History	Notes	Performance	Mobile	Profile		
User: *** Knight, Michael (Id:1020) + Add Note											
06-Jul-2016 12:2	3 PM - Getter,	Screenshot								🗷 Edit	
Issue resolved. Items appearing properly on device.											
06-Jul-2016 12:23 PM - Getter, Screenshot											
Having an issue with displaying items on his iPad. Updating his version.											

Figure 1-13 – Users & Groups: Notes Sub-Tab

The Notes tab displays any notes recorded to date, and allows administrators to contribute additional notes when necessary. Page elements include:

	Users & Groups: Notes Sub-Tab									
Element	Description									
Note Detail:	Shows the date, time, and Administrator that entered the note.									
Edit Link:	Click the edit link to change the note; click Save to save your updates. To delete the note, click the checkbox Delete this note and click the Save button.									
+ Add Note	Click the Add Note button to add a new note. Click Save to save your new note. Click Cancel to exit without saving your new note.									

Notes are viewable only by administrators with Course Manager access. They are not viewable by Users or Group/Reporting Managers.

1.1.3.8 Users New User: Performance

The next option Tab 8 for a User record is the Performance tab. Administrators can view performance-based documents specific to the user. **The Performance tab is present if the optional OnPoint Performance Plus Module has been purchased.** This feature set allows evaluations to be selected and assigned to the user that will be routed based on a defined routing/workflow schema and populated Organizational Chart.

Please refer to the Performance Plus Module Guide for an overview discussion of the module and how it can support the appraisal process, along with an in-depth description of its unique features.

USER	USERS & GROUPS: USER											
	Information	Assignmer	nts	Recommendations	Memberships	Test Scores	History	Notes	Performance	Mobile	Profile	
User: As	Activity, Tes	t (Id:148750)										
Hilto	on PE Test											
No.	Status Da	ate Score	Actio	on								
1	Pending	0.00	Star	t								

Figure 1-14 – Users & Groups: Performance Sub-Tab

1.1.3.9 Users New User: Mobile

The next option Tab 9 for a User record is the Mobile tab. From this submenu, Administrators can view and update a user's mobile device information.

USERS & GROU	PS: USER												
Information	Assignments	Recommendations	Memberships	Test Scores	History	Notes	Performance	Mobile	Profile				
User: *** Knight,	er: *** Knight, Michael (ld:1020)												
Mobile/SMS Nu	Mobile/SMS Number												
Country Code: 1 Telephone #:	Country Code: 1(US) Telephone #:												
Phone Types / [Phone Types / Device												
Primary: Apple i Shared: Apple i + Add New Pers	Primary: Apple iPad Active (Tablet) Shared: Apple iPad Active (Tablet) Group: December Shared Device Group 2014 + Add New Personal Device C Refresh List												
		Registra	ation code 245866	5511020 expires 3	1 Mar 2015	03:57 PM							
Picture													
Change Picture CRefresh													
l	Jser Access Sche	edule Mobile Regis	tration Code	Mobile Assignme	ents Fo	rce Full Sync	Mobile D	ownload Hi	story				

Figure 1-15A – Users & Groups: Mobile Sub-Tab

Data fields include the below options:

	Users & Groups: Mobile Sub-Tab Buttons									
Element	Description									
Mobile SMS Number:	The Mobile / SMS number is captured from the Information tab previously covered. Clicking on the link " Send SMS Message " will display.									
Phone Types / Device:	The device used to access the mobile app will be listed here. The Add a New Personal Device button allows for additional devices to be added to the user profile.									
Picture:	A picture of the user can be added here. The Change Picture button will allow browsing to find a file to upload.									

At the bottom of the tab are the following buttons:

Users & Groups: Mobile Sub-Tab Fields									
Element	Description								
User Access Schedule:	Allows for the limiting of user access based on day of week and time of day. This is in one-hour increments.								

r

Mobile Registration Code:	Clicking on this will bring up the Mobile Registration Code popup window. This will allow an admin to produce a Mobile Registration code that can be emailed and is displayed. You can also produce a QR code to work easily with mobile devices and you can set the code to expire, set max uses, and set parameters on the password (User must enter user name and password, Force to change password or no username or password needed) upon registration.
Mobile Assignments:	Displays full list of Mobile courses and nuggets assigned to the user. Includes Id, Name of course, Status, Playlist(s), Size of file, and Sync size.
Force Full Sync:	This button will invoke a full versus a partial sync for the users mobile device to ensure any new content to be downloaded or test results to be viewable that have not fully synced will be fully downloaded.
Mobile Download History:	Displays the files the mobile user downloaded to their device. Table includes, Date of download, Device type, Type of file, Id of file, Size and if full download was completed.



Tip: After editing a record and saving your updates, click the **Refresh** button to make sure all your changes are displayed.



Figure 1-15B-Users & Groups: Mobile Registration Code

Send Test SMS Message

If a mobile number has been entered on the User Information tab, the ability to **Send a Test SMS Message** link will appear. A pop-up window will display with the following information:

- User
- Country Code (dialed prefix)
- Mobile Number

You may enter a short message (140) in the Test Message field.



Note: The length of incoming SMS messages may be limited by the recipient's wireless service provider.

Click the **Send Message** button to deliver the SMS message, or the **Close** link to cancel this test without sending a message.

If the test is successful, a transaction message and delivery code will display.

Send SMS Messa	age
User: Country Code: Mobile Number:	Fry, Greg 1 (US) 402.332.1212
Test Message (length 21)	OPLS SMS Test Message
Send Message	

Figure 1-15C – Users & Groups: Send Test SMS Message Option

The Mobile information fields can be edited at any time with additional or updated information by clicking the **Device** to be updated.

USERS & GROU	USERS & GROUPS: USER												
Information	Assignments	Recommendations	Memberships	Test Scores	History	Notes	Performance	Mobile					
User: *** Knight,	Michael (Id:1020)											
Mobile/SMS Number													
Country Code:	1(US)												
Telephone #:													
		/											
Phone Types /	Device												
Primary: Apple	iPad Active (Tabl	et)											
Shared: Apple	iPad Active (Tabl	et) Group: December	Shared Device Gr	oup 2014									
+ Add New Pe	rsonal Device	🕽 Refresh List											
	Registration code 245866511020 expires 31 Mar 2015 03:57 PM												

Figure 1-15D – Users & Groups: Selecting Device to Edit

The next screen will allow the user to make the necessary updates to the Device selected. The user has an option on this screen to make the updates and **Save** the changes, **Cancel** out of the screen which will not save any changes that were made, **Close** out of the screen, or to **Delete** the device from the user profile.

	Mobile Device				3
av	Primary Phone/Device				
ad	Phone/Device:	Apple iPad	Ŧ		
ad	Device Push Id:	2355d80bfda7c6350866e96b4932a7ec			
n	<u>Opt Out</u>				
	Status:	Active	٣		
	Bandwidth Limit:	0 🌲 MB			
	Next Bandwidth Rollover:	01-Feb-2015			
	Bandwidth Usage:	0.33 MB Reset			
ſ	Allow My Media Uploads:	🗆 Images 🔲 Audio 💭 Video			
	Authorization Token:	Force renewal Expire			
e	User Agent:				tor
				Delete deivce	
	Save Cancel	-			

Figure 1-15E – Users & Groups: Edits to Devices

1.1.3.11 Users New User: E-Commerce

If the client has purchased this Module (Ecommerce) then this section displays the transactions the user has purchased. Table displays the Order ID, Date, Item(s), Summary and Price.

USERS & GROUPS: USER											
Information	Assignments	Memberships	Test Scores	History	Notes	Performance	Mobile Profile	E-Commerce	Certifications		
Name: Brown, C	Name: Brown, Charlie										
Transactions											
Order ID Date Item(s) Summary Price											

Figure 1-17 – Users & Groups: E-Commerce

1.1.4 Users & Managers: System Roles

The OnPoint system supports a number of different User and Manager roles which govern access and use of the system. This section provides a listing and description of each of the defined roles. The quantity of licenses purchased by the customer will determine the number of available users in each role.

Title:	OnPoint Event Instructor		
Organization		Q	
Organization.	Users		
Address:	User		
	Learner		
er Time Zone:	Record		
	Managers		
Country Code:	Site Administrator		ited States
ephone Work:	Content Administrator		
phone Mobile:	Course Coordinator		
' Overheim Delev	Event Manager	*	-
System Role:	Course Coordinator	*	J
count Expires:			

Figure 1-18 – Users & Groups: System Roles

Defined System Roles include:

	Users & Groups: System Roles
Element	Description
System Roles (Users):	 The assigned level of the User. Select from the following: User Role (Level 3) - The most commonly used system role; permits the defined User to access the Portal and Content Viewer and provides open access and navigation to all non-restricted learning and development materials. Learner Role (Level 2) - The second most commonly used system role; permits the defined Learner to access the Portal and Content Viewer; provides open access to all non-restricted learning and development materials, but restricts navigation to linear paths only. Record Role (Level 1) - Record-level roles are the lowest level role and are designed for recordkeeping purposes only. They allow organizations to maintain online histories of personnel that no longer have access to the OnPoint Content Viewer or Portal to take Courses, Assessments, etc. Record-level seats are most commonly used to archive the system histories of User-level and Learner-level accounts when they leave the organization. Record-level seats are more cost effective than User and Learner-level seats; one a user's status is changed to a "Record", the user license seat is freed up to be re-used for a new Active User. Note: For example, "Learners" must progress through an assigned Course sequentially (Page 1 followed by Page 2) whereas "Users" may jump around within a Course as they desire and review pages in any order they choose.

Performance Managers:	 The assignable levels for Managers. Select from the following: Group Manager - In addition to full User-level capabilities, personnel with Group Manager-level system roles have the ability to access progress summaries and histories for all members of their department or Group using OnPoint Performance Manager ("OPPM) application. Via OPPM, Group Managers can view information, generate reports, make user level assignments to those members within their group (s), and create new users through the OPPM interface. Users created by a Group Manager are automatically assigned to the group the Group Manager manages. Reporting Manager - In addition to full User-level capabilities, personnel with Reporting Manager-level system roles have the ability to access progress summaries and histories for all members of their department or Group using OnPoint Performance Manager ("OPPM) application. Via OPPM, Reporting Managers can view information and generate reports but they cannot make assignments. Document Administrator - In addition to full User-level capabilities, personnel with Document Administrator-level system roles has the ability to edit and maintain Document Manager (OPDOC) menus and administration. This level of administrator has Root level access to the OPDOC, for the purpose of creating menu systems, setting up preferences, and determining security for menus and docs within the group Document Manager instance they are assigned to manage.
Administrators:	 The assignable levels for Administrators. Select from the following: Root Administrator - This is typically an OnPoint role, it has access to all features and functions of the system including control over the server. Site Administrator - Site Administrator-level accounts have full system rights to the select server slice they are assigned to. Personnel with Site Admin-level accounts can also be assigned to courseware and other standard system services. Content Administrator - These accounts permit access to most slice features including deletion tasks but exclude Site/System-related configuration menus and utilities. Course Coordinator - In addition to full User-level capabilities, personnel with Course and Assessments and make assignments to other personnel. Event Manager - Ability to schedule and edit event calendars only.

1.1.5 Users & Managers: Edit a User or Manager Record

To Edit a User record, select the user you wish to edit from the **Users & Groups: Users** list by clicking on the user. The User record will display, defaulted on the Information sub-tab page.

Action buttons that appear across the lower portion of the User Record Information page include the **Edit** button which will allow you to view and edit the data fields for your selected record, the **Refresh** button which allows you to refresh the page with recent updates if needed, the **List** button which will return you to the previous listing that you were working from, the **User Actions** button allows you to access the Login Action, Reset User History, and User Flag Values. The **Assignment Views** button allows you to access the Assignment Status, Competency Matrix, User Certificates, Access History, and Trigger Execution Log.

During the Edit process, when you have completed your changes, scroll down and you can choose to **Save** any changes that were made or **Cancel** the changes and exit the page without making any changes.

All user information fields can be edited at any time with additional or updated information. The **Edit** button is required to update the user information fields of a User record.



Tip: After editing a record and saving your updates, click the **Refresh** button to make sure all your changes are displayed.

Note: You must be a higher-level administrator to edit another manager's record.

Additional Action Buttons appearing across the bottom right of the screen include:

User Actions	This button allows you to access the Login Action, Reset User History, and User Flag Values.
Assignment Views	This button allows you to access the Assignment Status, Competency Matrix, User Certificates, Access History, and Trigger Execution Log.

Reset User History

Click one or more of the checkboxes as required in order to reset a user's status when needed for the available options.

USERS & GROUPS: USER HISTORY	
The reset user history option allows you to clear the specified user's history. Please select the items you want cleared from the list below.	
User: Michael *** Knight	
Reset:	
Tests & feedback results (scores, answers and status)	
Activity status to Pending	
Course progress to Not Attempted	
Asessment set progress to Not Attempted	
Nugget status to Not Attempted	
Event status to not attended	
User's performance evaluation data	
User's xAPI transaction data	
<u>Select-all</u> <u>Clear-all</u>	
Reset History O Cancel	Clear Mobile Cache

Figure 1-19 – Users & Groups: Reset User History

Action links and buttons include:

Users & Groups: Action Buttons		
Elements	Description	
select-all	This short-cut action places a check in all available checkboxes.	
clear-all	This short-cut action removes all checks inside the checkboxes.	
Reset History	Once you have determined which items you wish to reset for the user, click the Reset History button.	
	Tip: Be sure about your selection before you click the Reset History button. Once the command is placed, the action is immediately performed and cannot be reversed.	
O Cancel	Click the Cancel button to return to the user record.	
Clear Mobile Cache	This action button can be used to force the cell cast app's cache to be cleared in the event it is interfering with the device receiving new data.	

Updating User-Level Assignments

The second sub-tab of the User record displays assignments for the User.

Inf	formation	Assignments	Recommendations	Merr	berships	Test Scores	History	Notes	Performance	Mobile	Profile	
-	-	Posigninento	The contract of the second	Pren	io crompo	restocores	moury	Hotes	renormance	ribbiic	Tronic	
Cou	ırse Assigi	nments	Assign	Archive								
Id	Course					Status		Due Date	Recertify	Last Con	np.	Next Recert.
151	Mobile L	earning Comes of	Age!			Comple	ted					
2 Ass	essment S	et Assignments	a Assign	Archive								
Id	Assessm	ient Set				Status		Due Date	Recertify	Last Con	np.	Next Recert.
30	test liker	t				Not atte	mpted					
🛃 Nuç	jget Assigi	nments	Assign	Archive								
Id	Nugget					Status		Due Date	Recertify	Last Con	np.	Next Recert.
77	10 Minut	e Audio w/ Asses	sment [Antique]			Not atte	mpted					
151	Brandon	: Change Is Good				Not atte	mpted					
335	Gamifica	tion 101				Not atte	mpted					
198	iPhone G	uide (ePub versio	on]			Not atte	mpted					
337	OPCA M	P3 ASAP OMG				Not atte	mpted					
317	PLOGCa	st				Not atte	Not attempted					
42	Respons	ibility				Not atte	mpted					
190	Sample I	Boat Owner's Mar	nual [Metatag]			Not atte	Not attempted					
195	Test Impactica - animation, images, audio				Not atte	mpted						
381	Tester N	lugget				Not atte	mpted					
196	Tillman	 The Skateboard 	ing Dog [Description]			Not atte	empted					
* Act	tivity Assig	inments	Assign	Archive								
Id	Activity					Status						
30	Activity (Upload 1				Pending						
📼 Eve	ent Assignr	nents	Assign	Archive								
Id	Event					Status						
400	2008-20	10 Performance I	lanagement - Inform	ation & I	Updates to							
499	Manage	rs										
560	The Joy	of Potatoes										
	II Profile /	ssianments	Assian	Archive	Update Sta	itus						
루 Ski	in Frome /											

Figure 1-20 – Users & Groups: User Assignment Editing

The Assignments sub-tab displays the completion status of all assignments for the user. Assignments are listed alphabetically underneath each assignment type, as follows:

	Users & Groups: Assignment Types
Element	Description
Course Assignments:	Indicates which Courses the user is currently assigned to take. Click the Assign link to add new Courses or to change the current assignment(s). Click the Assign orUnassign button to commit your changes and click the Finished button to return to the Assignments screen. Archive completed Courses by clicking the Archive link. To Edit the status of any specific Course Assignment, click the Assignment and then select the Change Status button.
Assessment Set Assignments:	Indicates which Assessments the user is currently assigned to take. Click the Assign link to add new Assessment Set assignments or to change the current assignment(s). Click either the Assign or Unassign button to commit your changes and click the Finished button to return to the Assignments screen. Archive completed Assessments by clicking the Archive link. To Edit the status of any specific Assessment Set Assignment, click the Assignment and then select the Change Status button.
Nugget Assignments:	Indicates which Nuggets the user is currently assigned to complete. Click the Assign link to add new Nugget assignments or to change the current assignment(s). Click either the Assign or Unassign button to commit your changes and click the Finished button to return to the Assignments screen. Archive completed Nuggets by clicking the Archive link. To Edit the status of any specific Nugget Assignment, click the Assignment and then select the Change Status button.
Activity Assignments:	Indicates which Activities the user is currently assigned to complete. Click the Assign link to add new Activity assignments or to change the current assignment(s). Click either the Assign or Unassign button to commit your changes and click the Finished button to return to the Assignments screen. Archive completed Activities by clicking the Archive link. To Edit the status of any specific Activity Assignment, select the Assignment to open the Activities: Activity Status screen and update the status.

Users & Groups: Assignment Types			
Element	Description		
Event Assignments:	Indicates which Events in which the user is currently assigned to participate. Click the Assign link to add new Event assignments or to change the current assignment(s) and click the Finished button to return to the Assignments screen. Archive completed Events by clicking the Archive link. To Edit the status of any specific Event Assignment, click the Completed link to the right of the assignment name (Yes or No).		
Skill Profile Assignments:	Indicates which Skill Profiles the user is currently assigned to. Click the Assign link to add new Skill Profile assignments or to change the current assignment(s). Click either the Assign or Unassign button to commit your changes and click the Finished button to return to the Assignments screen. Archive completed Skill Profiles by clicking the Archive link. The Update Status link is designed to allow an Administrator to reset the completion status of a profile. When an Administrator adds an item to a Skill Profile, they may need to "update" the completion status for Users. A global setting can be made that governs whether an otherwise "Completed" status for users would be set back to		

All User assignment fields can be edited at any time with additional or updated information. No "Edit" button is required to update the assignment fields of a User record. See the following sub-sections for detailed instructions on editing the assignment status fields.

1.1.5.1 Edit User or Manager: Edit Course Status

A user's course status can be edited by clicking on the Course. The **Users & Groups: Course Status View** page will appear and display fields for User name, Course name, Approved status, Assigned date, Due date, Completed date, Access Begins and Ends dates, Course Status, Mobile Sync, and Recommended fields.

Finished	
User:	*** Knight, Michael
Course:	Mobile Learning Comes of Age!
Approved:	Yes
Assigned:	13-Jan-2015
Due Date:	
Completed:	28-Jun-2016 09:29 PM
Access Begins:	
Access Ends:	29-Oct-2015 12:00 AM
Course Status:	Completed
Mobile Sync:	Removed
ecommended:	System
\rightarrow	Change Status Update Status Status Detail Time Analysis Archive to History
	Recertify
Accorcomontes	Test Type Attempt Date Taken Score Status Action
Assessments:	Sample Test Test Not attempted
ccess History:	Start Data & Time, End Data & Time, Action, Duration, Accord Status, Client

Figure 1-21 – Users & Groups: Course Status View

Editable fields include:

Users & Groups: Course Status View page		
Element	Description	
Course Status:	Indicates the status of the user in this particular course (e.g. Completed, "Failed", Incomplete, Not Attempted). Administrators can change the completion status as well as the date the course was assigned and completed by clicking the Change Status button.	
Assessments:	Lists the tests associated with this course and each attempt that a user has made to take the test and those results. Clicking the Edit link in the Action column allows an Administrator to edit the test results. Click the View link in the Action column to open a view of the test questions and answers given. Click the Close link to close the window.	



Tip: If an Administrator needs to record course-related test scores for a test taken off-line, this can be accomplished by entering a score where no score actually existed. A "dummy" test is made and assigned to the course, then scores can be added in manually here.

The Course Status View page also auto-displays:

Access History:	Displays system-generated details including the Start Date & Time, End Date & Time, Action, Duration, Access Status, and Client. This data only shows SESSION details not Page Time Analysis data
	Page Time Analysis data.

Click the **Finished** button to return to the User record.

Edit the User's Completion Status of a Course

Administrators can change the status of a user's course as well as the date the course was assigned and completed by clicking the **Change Status** button on the **Course Status View** Page.

USERS & GROUPS: COURSE STATUS CHANGE				
User:	*** Knight, Michael			
Course:	Mobile Learning C	Comes of Age!		
Assigned:	13-Jan-2015			
Due Date:				
Completed:	28-Jun-2016			
Access Ends:	29-Oct-2015	■ ⊘ Time Midnight • : 00 •		
Course Status:	Completed			
	Failed			
	Incomplete			
	O Not attempted	d (clears locks)		
Mobile Sync:	No No			
	• Yes			
	Permanent			
	Removed			
✓ Execute defir	ned course triggers	5		
Change Status O Cancel				

Figure 1-22A - Users & Groups: Course Status Change

The Course Status Change window displays the User name and Course name. Administrators may enter new information for the Assigned date, Due Date, Completed date, and Access Ends date (click the calendar icon for a shortcut and to ensure the correct date format is entered). Click the radio button to select the desired Course Status and whether to allow Mobile Sync.



Note: Changing the Course Status to "Not Attempted" clears out any course locks and allows users to start a course over again.

At anytime during this edit you may click **Change Status** to save any changes that have been made or **Cancel** to cancel the action and exit the page without making any changes.

Additional links to the right of the Change Status button on the Course Status View page include:

Users & Groups: Course Change Status				
Element	Description			
Update Status:	Performs a real-time system check to ensure an up-to-date status is reflected for this particular user. When this link is selected, you will not see any pop-up or results message. This action is similar to a "Refresh" in a browser.			
Status Detail:	Lists each page of the course viewed by the user, and the completion status of each page visit. Click the Close link to close the window. This is also where the SCORM page status is presented as reported after users last logout from a SCORM course.			
Time Analysis:	Compares the number of times this user visited each page, and the total and average amount of time spent on each page visit, against the number of visits and time other learners/users spent on the same pages of this course. Click the Close link to close the window.			
Archive to History:	Allows an Administrator to archive just this specific course. Clicking this link moves the course listing from the user's current Assignments to the user's History sub-tab, and returns you to the Assignments sub-tab. Click the History sub-tab to see the Course listed there now. The User will no longer see this course listed under their current assignments.			
	If all completed course assignments need to be archived, use the Archive link under the Assignments sub-tab.			

Edit the User's Test Score within a Course

Test scores can also be edited using the **Edit** link under the Action column of the Assessments table of the Course Status View page. Clicking this link opens the User test Score Edit page.

USERS & GROUPS: USER TEST SCORE EDIT					
User:	Fry, Greg				
Course:	Course: Html based sample course				
Test:	Sample MCMA Test				
Test Type:	Test				
Passing Score:	50				
Score:	89.0				
Status:	Passed				
	Completed				
	Failed 0				
	Incomplete				
	Not Attempted				
Test Date:	09-Dec-2013				
Save	S Cancel				

Figure 1-22B - Users & Groups: Edit User Test Score Screen

The User Test Score Edit page displays the User name, Course name, Test name and Type, and Passing Score. User's test scores can be entered into the Score input field. Change the Test Status by clicking the appropriate radio button next to the desired Status condition.

The icon gives more information on the use of the Score input field and when to use each of the statuses listed. Test Date information can be altered using the Test Date input field (use the pop-up calendar icon for a shortcut and to ensure the correct date format is entered).

At anytime during this edit you may click **Save** to save any changes that have been made or **Cancel** to cancel the action and exit the page without making any changes.

View the User's Test Results within a Course

Click the **View** link to review the test results in detail, showing both the questions asked and the answers provided by the user.

User:	Frv, Grea		Print
Course:	Html based	sample course	
Test:	Sample MCI	MA Test	
Description:	Sample Tes	t with 2 MCMA guestions	
Passing Score:	50		
User Score:	0.00		
Date:	12/09/2013	}	
Attempt:	1		
Test Type:	Test		
Status:	Incomplete		
		-	
Legend: V C	orrect 🔻 In	correct 🛄 Answer Missing	
No Graded	Туре	Answer	
1 What let	ters are in th	e Spanish alphabet, but not the English alphabet?	
Yes	Choice	A. Ch correct	
	Multiple	B. Rr correct	
	Answer	C. N	
		D. Ll correct	
		E, U	
		???mcma_missing_answers???	
2 Which o	f the following	g are Lamborghini vehicle models?	
Yes	Multiple	A. Diablo correct	
	Choice, Multiple	B. Countach correct	
	Answer	C. Spyder	
		D. Murcielago correct	
		E. Sixth Element correct	
		F. 911	
		???mcma_missing_answers???	

Figure 1-23 - Users & Groups: View User Test Results screen
1.1.5.2 Edit User or Manager: Edit Assessment Set Status

A User's Assessment Set status can be edited by selecting the Assessment Set which will bring you to the **Assessment Set Status View** page and then select the **Change Status** button. The Assessment Set Status View page will also display fields for User name, Assessment Set name, Approved status, Assigned date, Due Date, Completed date, Access Ends, Assessment Set Status, and Recommended fields.

🛛 Ass	Assessment Set Assignments Assign Archive		
Id	Assessment Set	Status	
92	BBQ Sauce Assessment Set	Not attempted	
114	Canine Behaviour Review	Not attempted	
45	Chad Test 1	Not attempted	
46	Chad Test 2	Not attempted	
48	Chad Test 3	Not attempted	
30	test likert	Not attempted	

Figure 1-24 – Users & Groups: Assessment Set Status link



Figure 1-25 – Users & Groups: Assessment Set Status View

Users & Groups: Assessment Set Status View	
Element	Description
Assessment Set Status:	Indicates the status of the user in this particular Assessment. Administrators can change the status of a user's Assessment Set as well as the date the Assessment Set was assigned or completed by clicking on Change Status .

Assessments:	Lists the tests associated with this Assessment Set and each attempt that a user has made to take the test and those results. Clicking the Edit link in the Action column allows an Administrator to edit the test results or add test results if none exist including a Score, Completion Status and Test Date. Clicking the View link in the Action column opens a view of the test questions and answers given. Click the Close link to close.



Tip: If an Administrator needs to record course-related test scores for a test taken off-line, this can be accomplished by entering a score where no score actually existed. A "dummy" test is made and assigned to the course, then scores can be added in manually here.

The Assessment Set Status View page also auto-displays:

Click the **Finished** button to return to the User record.

Change the User's Completion Status of an Assessment Set

Administrators can change the status of a user's Assessment Set by clicking the **Change Status** button on the **Assessment Set Status Change** page.

USERS & GROUPS: ASSESSMENT SET STATUS CHANGE		
User:	*** Knight, Mich	ael
Assessment Set:	BBQ Sauce Asse	ssment Set
Assigned:	07-Jul-2016	
Due Date:		
Completed:		
Access Ends:	31-Dec-2099	₩⊘ Time 11 PM ▼: 59 ▼
Assessment Set Status:	Completed	
	Failed	
	Incomplete	
	Not attempte	ed (clears locks)
	Declined	
Execute defined course	e triggers	
Change Status	O Cancel	

Figure 1-26 - Users & Groups: Assessment Set Status Change

Assigned, Due, and Completed dates can be altered, and the completion status can be changed by selecting the desired radio button. Note that changing the Assessment Set Status to "Not Attempted" also clears out any locks and allows users to start the assessment set over again.

At anytime during this edit you may click **Change Status** to save any changes that have been made or **Cancel** to cancel the action and exit the page without making any changes.

From the **Assessment Set Status View** page, click the **Finished** button to return to the User record.

Additional links to the right of the **Change Status** button include:

Users & Groups: Assessment Status Change		
Element	Description	
Update Status:	Performs a real-time system check to ensure an up-to-date status is reflected for this particular user. When this link is selected, you will not see any pop-up or results message. This action is similar to a "Refresh" in a browser.	
Time Analysis:	Compares the number of times the user viewed each page, and the total and average amount of time they spent on each page, against the time other learners/users visited and spent on the same pages of the assessment set and assigned tests. Click the Close link to close the window.	
Archive to History:	Allows an Administrator to archive just this specific assessment set. Clicking this link moves the assessment set listing from the user's Assessment Set Assignments to underneath the user's History sub-tab, and returns you to the Assignments sub-tab. Click the History sub-tab to see the Assessment Set listed there now. The User will no longer see this Assessment Set listed under their current assignments. If all completed Assessment Set assignments sub-tab instead of performing the function under the specific assessment set as we have just described here.	

Edit the User's Test Score within an Assessment Set

Assessment Set test scores can also be added or edited using the links in the action column of the Assessments category on the Assessment Set Status View. Click the **Edit** link to open the User Test Score Edit page.

USERS & GROUPS: USER TEST SCORE EDIT		
User:	*** Knight, Michael	
Assessment Set:	Canine Behaviour Review	
Test:	Who's a good boy?	
Test Type:	Appraisal	
Passing Score:	0	
Score:	0.0	
Status:	Completed	
	Incomplete	
	Not Attempted	
Test Date:	07-Jul-2016	
🖺 Save 🖉 Cancel		

Figure 1-27 - Users & Groups: User Test Score Edit

User's test scores can be edited directly from this page. Test scores can be entered into the Score input field, and the completion Status can also be changed by clicking the desired radio button. Test Date information can be altered using the Test Date input field or the pop up calendar to the right of the field. Click the **Delete this test score** checkbox to remove an existing test score.

The ¹ icon gives more information regarding available status conditions. At anytime during this edit you may click **Save** to save any changes that have been made or **Cancel** to cancel the action and exit the page without making any changes.

You will be returned to the Assessment Set Status View page. Click the **Finished** button to return to the User record.

1.1.5.3 Edit User or Manager: Edit Nugget Status

A User's Nugget status can be edited by selecting the Nugget which will take you to the **Nugget Status View** page where you can select the **Change Status** button.

USERS & GROUPS: NUGGET STATUS VIEW		
User:	*** Knight, Michael	
Nugget:	10 Minute Audio w/ Assessment [Antique] (#77)	
Approved:	Yes	
Assigned:	13-Jan-2015 02:24 PM	
Due Date:		
Completed:		
Access Begins:		
Access Ends:	31-Jan-2100 11:59 PM	
Nugget Status:	Not attempted	
Mobile Sync:	Yes	
Recommended:	System	
	Change Status Update Status Archive to History Certificates	
Assessments:	Test Type Attempt Date Taken Score Status Action	
	Non Graded Test Feedback	
Access History:	Date & Time Action Duration Access Status Client	

Figure 1-28 – Users & Groups: Nugget Status View

The Nugget Status View page auto-displays fields for User name, Nugget name, Approved status, and Assigned date, Due Date, Completed date, Access Begins and Ends, Nugget Status, Mobile Sync, and Recommended fields.

Editable fields include:

Users & Groups: Nugget Status View		
Element	Description	
Nugget Status:	Indicates the status of the user in this particular Nugget (e.g. Passed, Completed, Failed, Incomplete, Not Attempted). Administrators can change the status of a user's Nugget, as well as the date the Nugget was assigned and completed by clicking the Change Status button.	
Assessments:	Lists the tests associated with this Nugget and each attempt that a user has made to take the test and those results. Clicking the Edit link in the Action column allows an Administrator to edit the test results or add test results if none exist. Clicking the View link in the Action column opens a view of the test questions and answers given. Click the Close link to close the window.	

The Nugget Status View page also auto-displays:

Access History:	Displays system-generated detail with the Date & Time, Action, Duration, Access Status, and Client.
-----------------	---

Click the **Finished** button to return to the User record.

Change the User's Completion Status of a Nugget

Administrators can change the status of a user's Nugget by clicking the Change Status button.

User:	*** Knight, Michael	
Nugget:	10 Minute Audio	w/ Assessment [Antique]
Assigned:	13-Jan-2015	
Due Date:		
Completed:		
Access Ends:	31-Jan-2100	₩⊘ Time 11 PM ▼: 59 ▼
Nugget Status:	Passed	
	Completed	
	Failed	
	Incomplete	
	Not attempte	ed (also clears locks)
Mobile Sync:	◎ No	
	• Yes	
	Permanent	
	Removed	
Execute defin	ed nugget trigger	'S

Figure 1-29 - Users & Groups: Nugget Status Change

Assigned, Due, Completed, and Access Ends dates can be altered, and the completion status can be changed by selecting the desired radio button. Note that changing the Nugget Status to "Not Attempted" also clears out any locks and allows users to start the nugget over again.

Use the Action buttons at the bottom of the screen to:

Change Status	To save any changes made to the Status of the Nugget status.
🛇 Cancel	To return to the Nugget Status View page without saving any changes.

Additional links to the right of the Change Status button include:

Users & Groups: Nugget Status Change		
Element	Description	
Change Status:	Allows you to edit the status of the nugget for that user.	
Update Status:	Performs a real-time system check to ensure an up-to-date status is reflected for this	

	particular user. When this link is selected, you will not see any pop-up or results message. This action is similar to a "Refresh" in a browser.
Time Analysis:	Compares the number of times the user viewed each page, and the total and average amount of time they spent on each page, against the time other learners/users visited and spent on the same pages of the nugget and any assigned tests. Click the Close link to close the window.
Archive to History:	Allows an Administrator to archive just this specific nugget. Clicking this link moves the nugget listing from the user's Nugget Assignments to underneath the user's History sub- tab, and returns you to the Assignments sub-tab. Click the History sub-tab to see the Nugget listed there now. The User will no longer see this nugget listed under their current assignments. If all completed Nugget assignments need to be archived for this user, use the Archive link under the Assignments sub-tab instead of performing the function under the specific nugget as we have just described here.
Certificates:	Allows an admin to view any earned certificates for this nugget.

Edit the User's Test Score within a Nugget

Nugget test scores can also be added or edited using the links in the action column of the Assessments category on the Nugget Status View page. Clicking the **Edit** link opens the User Test Score Edit page.

USERS & GRO	OUPS: USER TEST SCORE EDIT		
User:	B-H Demo, User		
Nugget:	Secure Computing - Research Report #22		
Test:	Secure Computing PR Test		
Test Type:	Test		
Passing Score:	75		
Score:	50.0		
Status:	 Passed Completed Failed Incomplete Not Attempted 		
Test Date: 26-Aug-2010			
Delete this test score			
🖺 Save 🖉 Cancel			

Figure 1-30 - Users & Groups: User Nugget Test Score Edit

User's test scores can be edited directly from this page. Test scores can be entered into the Score input field and the completion Status can also be changed by clicking the desired radio button. Test Date information can be altered using the Test Date input field or the pop-up calendar to the right of the field. Click the Delete this test score checkbox to remove an existing test score.

The ¹ icon gives more information on the available status conditions listed. At anytime during this edit you may click **Save** to save any changes that have been made or **Cancel** to cancel the action and exit the page without making any changes.

1.1.5.4 Edit User or Manager: Edit Activity Status

A user's Activity status can be edited by selecting the Activity which will take you to the **Activity Status** page where you can edit the status using the radio buttons next to the Activity Status data field.

ACTIVITIES: ACTIVITY STATUS						
User:	*** Knight, Michael		Uploaded Activity Files			
Activity:	Activity Upload 1		Date/Time File (click to download)			
Due Date:						
File Upload:	Required					
Activity Status:	Pending					
	Participated	User activity status should				
	Completed	not be set to Archived until the user has completed				
	Not completed	the activity				
	Archived					
Status Date:	23-May-2016					
	Archive to History Certificates					
Comment:						
No		h				
Manager Comment:						
	li di					
Recommended: System						
Save O Cancel						

Figure 1-31 – Users & Groups: Activity Status View

The **Activity Status View** page auto-displays fields for User name, Activity name, Due Date, if a file was uploaded, Activity Status, status date, a place for usercomments and manager comments, and if it is Recommended. Editable fields include:

Users & Groups: Activity Status View				
Element	Description			
Due Date:	Indicates the date the Activity was set to take place.			
Activity Status:	Indicates the status of the Activity (Pending, Participated, Completed, Not Completed, or Archived). This status can be changed by clicking the radio button in front of the status you want the Activity to become.			
Status Date:	Indicates the date the Activity was completed by the user. This field can be input or changed by an administrator.			
Comment:	Comments regarding the activity or the user's participation can be saved here. Comments are only visible to administrators.			
Manager Comment:	Manager Comments regarding the activity or the user's participation can be saved here. Manager Comments are only visible to administrators.			

At anytime during this edit you may click **Save** to save any changes that have been made or **Cancel** to cancel the action and exit the page without making any changes.

1.1.5.5 Edit User or Manager: Edit Event Status

A User's Event status can be edited by clicking on **Completed** for that Event the User Event Status page will appear.

USERS & GRO	DUPS: USER EVENT STATUS
Finished	
User:	*** Knight, Michael
Event:	2008-2010 Performance Management - Information & Updates to Managers
Assigned:	10-Jun-2013
Completed:	
Status:	Active
Recommended:	System
Archive	ertificates
Class	Session (click to change) Approved Attended Location Instructor
2009-2010 Pe	rformance Management - Information & Updates to Managers
	12-Jun-2013 09:00 AM Yes No * Atlanta Brandyn Bold

Figure 1-32 – Users & Groups: User Event Status

The **Event Status View** page auto-displays fields for User name, Event name, Status, and Recommended. Each Class of the Event is listed, along with the Session date currently assigned, the Approved and Attended Status, the Location, and the Instructor(s) of each Session. Classes within an Event must all be attended by the assigned user in order to receive a completed status for the Event. Editable fields include:

Users & Groups: User Event Status				
Element:	Description			
Session:	Indicates the specific Session of the Class the user is assigned to attend. Administrators can change the Event session assigned or completed by clicking on the session date/time link (see below for more detail).			
Approved:	Indicates whether a user has been approved by an admin to attend this particular Class of the Assigned Event. Click the Yes or No to change the entry.			
Attended:	Indicates the attendance status of the user in the particular Class of the Event. Click the Yes or No to change the entry.			
Location:	The physical location of the event.			
Instructor:	The instructor of the event.			

Click the **Finished** button to return to the User record.

Change the User's Event Session Date/Time

Event Session times can be changed using the links in the Session column on the User Event Status page. Clicking the Session Date/Time link opens the Event Class Scheduling page.

EVENTS: EVENT CLASS SCHEDULING								
Event: Autumn Festival	(Id:592) Class: Names f	or the Sea	sons (I	d:776)				
Click * Th	k on any of the session date he number of available sea	es and time ts may refle	s to mov ct sessio	e the selection seat allo	ted user to cations or a	a new ses audience re	sion. strictions.	
*** Knight, Michael	Event Assignments						Show P	ast Sessions
	Date (click to assign)	Time	Status	Maximum	Assigned	Available	Instructor	Location
	Jul-18-2016	10:35 am		0	0	Unlimited	Blast, Sergeant	Wellington
	Jul-22-2016	10:35 am		0	0	Unlimited	Blast, Sergeant	Wellington

Figure 1-33 - Users & Groups: Event Class Scheduling

Available Event Session Dates are displayed, along with the Session Time and number of Users currently enrolled. Users can be assigned to any session as long as there are available seats in that Session. Click any of the available session date links to move the user to that session. Click the **Finished** button to return to the **User Event Status** page.

1.1.6 Users & Managers: Delete a User or Manager Record

To make an existing user record "Inactive" or "Delete request", select **Users & Groups: Users & Managers**, and click on the User Name link to select the user you wish to edit. The User record will display, defaulted on the Information sub-tab. Click the **Edit** button in the lower left corner.

At the **Status** field (normally the last data field of a record), select the desired **Inactive** or **Delete request** radio button.

Click the **Save** button to activate your change. The Status field will now be highlighted in **Yellow** (to indicate Inactive) or **Pink** (to indicate Request delete).

Status: Inactive	
☑ Edit ☑ Refresh	User Actions Assignment Views

Figure 1-34A – Users & Groups: Inactive User Status

Status: Deleted Requested Jul-7-2016 2:08 PM by Screenshot Getter	
C Edit C Refresh	User Actions Assignment Views

Figure 1-34B – Users & Groups: Request delete User Status

For Request delete records, the Status field shows the requested deletion, the date/time, and who requested it.

Once a user is marked Inactive or Delete request, the user no longer has access to the OnPoint Portal or Content Viewer applications. Should they attempt to login, they will receive a message indicating that their account is Inactive or has been Deleted, and to check with their Support Department for assistance. Click the **List** button to return to the User List.

Notice that the User's name is no longer included in the list of Users. If the list's Filter is changed to show "All" user status conditions, the user will display in the list, highlighted in the appropriate yellow or pink color to alert others as to the status of the User record. The User name will also be excluded from any lists of Available Users when Administrators are making assignments.

OnPoint Digital, Inc. August 2017



Note: User records can only be deleted by a Site Administrator. When you request that a user be deleted, the Administrator reviews the request to ensure there is no need for the user before performing the delete function.

1.1.7 Users & Managers: Management Sub-Tab

Managers with a Performance Manager license (either Reporting Manager or Group Manager) receive an extra Management Sub-Tab when they are created.

To designate which Group or Groups the selected Reporting/Group Manager will have supervisory rights to view through OnPoint's Performance Manager ("OPPM") application, the **Administrative Rights** page will allow for the assignment and unassignment of groups to the Manager. A listing of all available Groups will display in the column on the right and a list of all assigned groups will display on the left. Group assignments are selected by clicking the checkbox next to the desired group(s) from the right-hand column (this allows you to assign more than one Group at a time). For environments with multitudes of available Groups, a **Filter** button is available that can help you narrow the available list. Click the **Assign/Unassign** button to commit the assignments.

USERS & GROUF	PS: ADMINIST	RATIVE RIGHTS										
Information	Assignments	Recommendations	Memberships	Test Scores	Management	History	Notes	Performance	Mobile	Profile		
Manager: ***, Batr	man (Id:1021)							Groups Job	Codes	Categories	A Mentored Us	sers
				∢ As	ssign/Unassign 🕨							
Assigned Groups	s (check to remo	ve)			Filter 1	d:	Name	/Desc:		✓ A	pply 🦪	
aaa test						Created by:		Status: Active	× *			
Wayne Manor					Availa	ble Groups	check to	o assign)				
								Filtere	d List			*
					□ *T	ne McTestso	ins					
						N Anchors						

Figure 1-36 – Users & Groups: Administrative Rights Group Management

Note: When the Reporting/Group Manager logs into OnPoint Performance Manager, they will only have viewing and reporting access on those users who are members of these assigned Groups.

1.2 Users & Groups: Groups

The second option under the main **Users & Groups** top-level Menu is **Groups**. This selection displays the **Users** & Groups: Groups List, a listing of all current Group assignments defined in the Course Manager database. From this list, you may:

- 1. Select a Group record from the List to review or edit by clicking on the Group.
- 2. Enter one or more letters in the Filter Name field to narrow your search.
- 3. Click the Add Group button to create a new Group.
- 4. Use the **Filter** button to narrow your search for a specific Group.

USER	USERS & GROUPS: GROUPS					
+ Ad	+ Add Group D Shared Device Groups Event Session Groups					
TF	T Filter Id Name Q Apply Tx					
Id	Group	Description	Supervisor	Status		
9333	***Asterisk Testing Group	Testing		Active		
2485	*The McTestsons	What a wonderful family!		Active		
9298	00 Front Line			Active		

Figure 1-37 – Users & Groups: Groups Table Display

Groups are listed alphabetically by Group Name, or numerically if Group names begin with numerals. The Group list displays the following:

	Users & Groups: Groups Table Display				
Element	Description				
Id Number:	The OnPoint Id record number for the Group. This field is auto-generated.				
Group Name:	The name of the Group. Click the Group Name link to view more details about the Group, or to edit the Group record.				
Description:	A description of the Group.				
Supervisor:	The name of the Supervisor of the Group (optional).				
Status:	Designates the Status of the specified group. Groups can be Active, Inactive, or Request Delete. The Group List is automatically set to filter and display by those with a status of "Active". This filter can be changed using the Filter button.				

What constitutes a group?

There are several common ways that OnPoint's customers use the Groups feature:

- 1. To represent different physical locations
- To represent different departments, internal organizations, or external partners/customers
 To represent different job roles

These common uses are the easiest to create in that you are likely to already have groups like these established in existing HRIS, Payroll, or LDAP/Active Directory systems. Keeping a commonality to groups can be efficient in the initial setup of the OnPoint system.

Remember a few key tips when you are first creating your groups. First, start with the high level, most common groupings. You can always add more groups as they become obvious or needed, so keeping your list to a reasonable number will be more manageable.

Second, create groups that you think you'll need to communicate with pretty often, or that are logical from an assignment perspective. For instance, if you have an ongoing need to communicate with all tellers in a particular country, you should create a group like "Tellers – Germany." If this only happens occasionally, you wouldn't need to create a group. Or say you have a regular need to make assignments to all Tellers. In this example, you would just create a group called "Tellers" then you would be able to make the assignments directly to that group.

Many customers create a group for (1) every physical location they have, and (2) every major department they have. Some also create groups for every job role they have. The decision is based on how they envision communicating with their users and how they will make assignments to users. In the OnPoint system, there are typically several ways to accomplish tasks. For example, you may choose to use the Job Code Assignments or Location Assignment designation under the Users - Membership Sub-tab to associate a user with one or more job codes and one physical location, and this will provide you the ability to make direct assignments to all members of a job code or location. The current system provides more communications capability, assignment capability, and reporting filters at the group level than by location or job code.

1.2.1 Groups: View a Group Record

The **Users & Groups: Group** record display provides a brief description of all the particulars of an established Group. To view and edit a Group record, select the Group you wish to view from the list of **Users & Groups: Groups** by clicking on the Group and the **Users & Groups: Group** record for that resource will appear. The displayed screen shows the Group Information page with the Action Buttons.



Figure 1-38 – Users & Groups: Group Record

The Users & Groups record has several Submenu tabs covering all of the definitions and parameters for the selected Group, as follows:

- A. **Information** Tab 1 "Group Information" includes fields for Group Id, Name, Description, Supervisor, Group Banner, Mobile, Mobile Tablets, Group Email, Status and up to 5 custom-defined fields.
- B. Assignments Tab 2 "Assignments" lists all of the current Assignments for that Group, including Courses, Assessment Sets, Nuggets, Activities, Events Skill Profiles/Curriculums, and Catalog assignments, along with assigned Forums, Mobile UI's & OPUI's, Group Managers, and Users. Most assignment fields may be manually updated at any time by clicking the corresponding Assign links.
- C. Recommendations Tab 3 "Recommendations" lists all of the current Recommendations for that group, including all of their Courses, Assessment Sets, Nuggets, Activities, Events, and Skill Profile/Curriculum assignments. These recommendation fields may be manually updated at any time by clicking the Recommend link, and removed when desired. Recommended items will show who made the recommendation, the date it was made, and also allow reinforcement.

D. **Mobile** – Tab 4 "Mobile" includes fields for creating a playlist, managing blogs or RSS feeds, and managing any of the media files to include audio, video, and image files. Once these are created you can select Generate Mobile Registration Codes to send mobile registration codes to group members.

Action buttons that appear across the lower portion of the Information sub tab include the **Edit** which will allow you to view and edit the data fields for your selected record, the **Refresh** which allows you to refresh the page with recent updates if needed, the **List** option which will return you to the previous listing that you were working from, the **Login Action** button which will provide actions for next login such as change password, show profile, etc., and Forum which allows users to post and have discussions.

USERS & GROUPS: GROUP						
Information	Assignments	Recommendations	Mobile			
Group: ***Asteris	Group: ***Asterisk Testing Group (Id:9333)					
Assigned Skill P	rofiles / Curricu	lums Assign				
Catalog Assignn	nents	Assign				
Assigned Forum	Assigned Forums					
_						
Assigned Mobile	Assigned Mobile UI's & OPUI's					
Group Managers	5					
Assigned Users		Assian	View			
0 user(s)						
😈 Tip						

Figure 1-39A – Users & Groups: Group Assignments

USERS & GROUPS: GROUP					
Information Assignments Recorr	mendations Mobile				
Group: ***Asterisk Testing Group (Id:9333)					
Course Recommendations	Recommend				
Id Course		Recommended By	Date		
Assessment Set Recommendations	Recommend				
Id Assessment Set		Recommended By	Date		
 Nugget Recommendations 	Recommend				
Id Nugget		Recommended By	Date		
* Activity Recommendations	Recommend				
Id Activity		Recommended By	Date		
I Event Recommendations	Recommend				
Id Event		Recommended By	Date		
육 Skill Profile Recommendations	Recommend				
Id Skill Profile		Recommended By	Date		

Figure 1-39B – Users & Groups: Group Recommendations

USE	RS & GROUP	S: GROUP				
1	Information	Assignments	Recommendations	Mobile		
Group	Group: ***Asterisk Testing Group (Id:9333)					
Pla	Playlist Create Playlist					
A m	nobile playlist ha	s not been creat	ed for this group.			
С	reate Playlist					
Blo	Blogs / RSS Feeds Manage					
Му	Media		Manage			
Allo	w uploading of	the following file	types from mobile pho	nes:		
	Audio files:	No				
	Video files:	No				
	Image files	: No				
Gei	nerate Mobile F	Registration Cod	les			

Figure 1-39C - Users & Groups: Group Mobile

Group Mobile Registration Codes
Generate and send mobile registration codes to group members
Code expires in 1440 🗘 hours Max. uses 99 🗘
Password:
\odot Type 1 User must enter their existing user name and password
Type 2 User will be forced to change their password This ontion will reset the user's current password in their user account
 Type 3 User account of the set of the se
Only generate codes for unregistered users
Generate QR code images
Send O Cancel

Figure 1-39C- Users & Groups: Group Mobile Registration

1.2.2 Groups: Search for a Group

Under Users & Groups: Groups is a list of all current Groups in your Course Manager repository. Groups are listed alphabetically by Group Name, or numerically if Groups Names begin with a number. To find a specific group, you may:

- Scroll through the list until you locate the group record.
 Enter one or more letters of the Group Name in the Name field to narrow your search.
- 3. Use the **Filter** button to narrow your search for a specific group.

Group Id:	Equals *			
Group Name:	Includes *			
Description:	Includes *			
Date Created:	On/After *			
Status:	Equals *	Active	× *	

Figure 1-40 – Users & Groups: Group Filter Selection Screen

The Groups: Group Filter allows you to search for a group by any of the following search criteria:

Users & Groups: Group Filter Selection Screen			
Element	Description		
	 Use the drop down menu for additional filter options: equals - filters for a match of a letter or text string. begins with - filters for all groups beginning with the criteria (e.g. type an A and get a list of all groups beginning with A). includes - filters for all groups that include the criteria (e.g. type "Sales" and get all groups that include that word). ends with - filters for all groups ending with the criteria. not equal to - filters out everything matching this entry (e.g. type an A and no groups beginning with A will display). less than - filters all matches less than the criteria. 		
Group Id:	Search by the Id assigned to the group.		
Group Name:	Search by the name of the group.		
Description:	Search by the description of the group. Use the drop-down menu as explained above, then enter some descriptive data.		
Date Created:	Search for all groups created on/after or before specific dates.		
Status:	Search by the group's status (All, Active, Inactive, or Delete Requested).		

When you are finished entering your selection criteria you can select **Apply** to apply the filters to the group list, select **Use Defaults** to reset the filter to the default setting, which is Active Group Status with Group names that begin with "A" or use the **Close** button to close the filter window.

The **I** icon will clear all filters and is available on this filter screen or at the top of the list on the **Users & Groups: Groups** page.

1.2.3 Groups: Create a New Group

To create a new Group record, select **Users & Groups: Groups**, then click the **Add Group** button. The **Users & Groups: Group Edit** screen will appear.

* Group Name:		
Description:		
Group Banner:	Default	٣
Mobile:	0 (Asset Id. The a	asset MUST be a PNG image)
Mobile Tablets:	0 (Asset Id. The a	asset MUST be a PNG image)
Group Email:		
Status:	● Active ○ Inactive ○	Delete
ustom Fields		
Area Manager:		¥
ternal Group Number:		
Awesome Group:		

Figure 1-41 – Users & Groups: Group Add Record

Complete the following data fields that are appropriate:

Users & Groups: Group Add Record			
Element	Description		
Group Name:	Enter the name of the Group. (Required Field)		
Description:	Enter a description of the Group.		
Group Banner:	Select the designated banner for the Group.		
Mobile:	Assign an image to the group by entering the asset Id of an image.		
Mobile Tablets:	Assign an image to the group (for use on a tablet) by entering the asset Id of an image.		
Group Email:	Enter an email address for the group.		
Group Forum:	Click the checkbox to auto create a forum for this group.		

Group Catalog:	Click the checkbox to auto create a catalog for this group.
Status:	 Enter the status of the Group. The default is Active. Active (Group is active) Inactive (Group is not active) Request Delete (Group record is no longer needed)
Custom Fields: (Up to 5)	Up to five custom-defined fields may appear here. The field captions displayed are entered by the Site Administrator. (Administration tab > Custom Fields submenu)

At anytime during this edit you may click **Save** to save any changes that have been made or **Cancel** to cancel the action and exit the page without making any changes.



Note: All Group information fields can be edited at any time with additional or updated info. The **Edit** button is required to update the Group information fields. After entering a new record and saving your entries, click the **Refresh** button to make sure all your new entries are displayed.

Assign a Supervisor for the Group

If you are not using the Organization Chart functionality of the OnPoint Learning System, you will have one additional field you can edit once you have created a new Group record. On the **Users & Groups: Group** page of any record, there is a Supervisor field, which allows you to enter a designated supervisor for the Group. Use the **Assign** link to select a manager name from the list (the list will include all OPCM and OPPM managers). This person will receive notifications triggered by group member actions if the trigger is set up to send the notification, and if you are not utilizing OnPoint's Organizations tree structure to identify a user's direct manager.



Figure 1-42A – Users & Groups: Groups – Assign Supervisor Link

USERS & GROUPS Group: *The McTest	S: ASSIGN SUPERVISOR	🚷 Home 🔹 👔	lip 🕞 Logod
	Use the Filter to populate available group supervisor.	users on the right; click a user name to assign t	he user as the
Assigned Supervis	or (click to unassign)	Available Supervisors (click to assign)	
		Filtered List	▼ Filter
		AAAA API, Test Abbott, David	

Figure 1-42B - Users & Groups: Groups - Select a Supervisor



Note: For OnPoint customers who are using Organizations, the supervisor field is hidden as it is not needed; the system will instead look to the org chart to determine the user's immediate supervisor.



Tip: The Supervisor function is different from the Reporting Manager designations. There may be multiple managers overseeing a group, but the notifications, when created, will send to one email when "Manager" is selected in the trigger recipient field, so the system will look for that user's primary group to find the designated supervisor.

1.2.3.1 New Group: Information

Once an Administrator has created and saved a new Group record, the **Users & Groups: Group** Information screen will display, including several sub-tabs that define the Group. The default view is the Group Information tab.

Action buttons that appear across the lower portion of the Group Information page include the **Edit** which will allow you to view and edit the data fields for your selected record, the **Refresh** which allows you to refresh the page with recent updates if needed, the **List** option which will return you to the previous listing that you were working from, the Login Action button which allows actions on next login such as change password, show profile, etc., and the **Forum** button which will allow users to submit entries and comment on each other's.

1.2.3.2 New Group: Assignments

Once a new Group record has been defined, Administrators may want to add assignments to the Group manually. Assignments can include Courses, Assessment Sets, Nuggets, Activities, Events, Skill Profiles/Curriculums, Catalog Assignments, Assigned Forums, Assigned Mobile UI's and OPUI's, Group Managers and Assigned Users. Since the newly created group has just been defined, no assignments will be displayed to start. If you do need to make assignments at the Group level, most fields may be manually updated at any time by clicking the corresponding **Assign** links.

USERS & GROU	PS: GROUP				
Information					
Group: *The McTestsons (Id:2485)					
Assigned Courses			Assign		
Assigned Assess	sment Sets		Assign		
Assigned Nugge	ts		Assign		
Assigned Activit	ies		Assign		
Assigned Events	;		Assign		
Assigned Skill P	rofiles / Curricu	ulums	Assign		
Catalog Assignn	nents		Assign		
Assigned Forum	s				
The Most Importa Training Customer	nt Forum Support Forum				

Figure 1-43 – Users & Groups: Group - Assignments tab

USERS & GROUPS: ASSIGN COURSES Group: *The McTestsons (Id:2485)	Unassign)	▲ Assign	Check items to assign or remove and click	k either Assign or Unassign
Assigned Courses (check to unassign)		Available Co	ourses (click to assign) <i>Filtered List</i> star sample course for MSC Mobility	▼ Filter
		 10 Ignido 10 Impor Podcast 	tant Activities to Perform When High Winds	Threaten - Affiliated FM

Figure 1-44 – Users & Groups: Group Assignments – Assign Courses

	Tip: If your organization has the OnPoint LMS integrated with an internal HRIS or other system that regularly feeds user import detail, those imports may automatically drive user assignments so that they do not need to be made via a group-based association. It may be that you will not need to make manual assignments to groups here under this sub-tab. For example, if a New Hire Orientation Skill Profile is created with 10 courses in it, and that Skill Profile is assigned to a Job Code 63 (New Hires), then all members of that job code will be automatically assigned all ten courses in the Skill Profile. No manual assignments would need to be made here at the Group level.
--	---

Tha	Accienmente	tab	diamlas	- +h -	accianmente	fortho	Chain	indudinat
INP	Assignments	1 AD	UISDIAV	sine	assignments	lor ine		inchiana:
	/ loorgrinnerico	cub	anopia		abbiginnentes	ioi ciic	Croup/	meraamigi

Users & Groups: Group Assignments						
Element	Description					
Assigned Courses:	Assign the Courses you want the Group's members to be assigned to take. Click the Assign link to add a new Course assignments. Course assignments are selected by clicking the checkbox next to the desired course(s) from the right-hand column (it is possible to assign more than one course at a time). For environments with multitudes of available courses, a Filter button is available that can help you narrow the available list. Click the Assign or Unassign button to commit the assignments. Click the Finished button to exit and return to the Assignments sub-tab.					
Assigned Assessment Sets:	Assign the standalone Assessment Sets you want the Group's members to be assigned to take. Follow the instructions as detailed above.					
Assigned Nuggets:	Assign the Nuggets you want the Group's members to be assigned to take. Follow the instructions as detailed above.					
Assigned Activities:	Assign the Activities you want the Group's members to be assigned to take. Follow the instructions as detailed above.					
Assigned Events:	Assign the Events you want the Group's members to be assigned to take. Click the Assign link to add a new Event assignment. Event assignments are selected by clicking the desired event from the right-hand column. This will automatically assign it and move it to the left-hand column. To remove an event, simply select the event from the left-hand column and it will automatically return to the Available Events list on the right-hand side.					
Assigned Skill Profiles/Curriculums:	Assign the Skill Profiles you want the Group's members to be assigned to take. Follow the instructions as detailed above in Assigned Courses.					
Catalog Assignments:	Assign the Catalogs you want the Group's members to be assigned to take. Follow the instructions as detailed above in Assigned Courses.					
Assigned Forums:	Auto populated to show the admin any assigned forums.					
Assigned Mobile UI's & OPUI's:	Auto populated to show the admin any assigned Mobile UI's or OPUI's.					
Group Managers:	Auto populated to show the admin any assigned group managers.					
Assigned Users:	Assign any Users you want as members of the Group. Follow the instructions as detailed above in Assigned Courses.					



Note: Group assignment fields can be edited at any time with additional or updated information. No **Edit** button is required to update the assignment fields of a Group record.

Using Filters When Assigning Users to Groups

When making the Group's User assignments, use the filters to help you quickly find the users you need. The system defaults to a filter selection "A", on the Available Users (right) column. You can change the letter you wish to filter on by using the input fields within the filter popup window. For larger numbers of users, clearing the filters is not recommended. As an example, the below shows the right column filtered for last names beginning with the letter "A".

USERS & GROUPS: ASSIGN USERS				
Group: *The McTestsons (Id:2485)				
	Unassign 🕨	Assign	Check items to assign or remove and clic	k either Assign or Unassign
Assigned Users (check to unassign)	▼ Filter	Available (Users (check to assign)	▼ Filter
Filtered List			Filtered List	
Great McTestson, Mcson		🔲 a, a		
McTestson, User		a2015, March		
Reyes, Nancy		AAA Tester, James		
Reyes, Nancy		AAA-Tester, James		
Shinall, Dan	AAAA API, Test			
Swain, Daniel			AAAAAA, tester	
Tester 2, QA		Abbott,	David	
user, pone		🔲 Admin,	Document	

Figure 1-45 – Users & Groups: Assign Users to Group

1.2.4 Groups: Edit a Group Record

To Edit an existing Group record, select the Group you wish to edit from the list of **Users & Groups: Groups** by clicking on the Group. The Group record will display, defaulted on the Group Information sub-tab page.

Action buttons that appear across the lower portion of the Group Information page include the **Edit** which will allow you to view and edit the data fields for your selected record, the **Refresh** which allows you to refresh the page with recent updates if needed, the **List** option which will return you to the previous listing that you were working from, the Login Action button which allows actions on next login such as change password, show profile, etc., and the **Forum** button which will allow users to submit entries and comment on each other's.

Click the **Edit** button to make any updates to the Group record. At anytime during this edit you may click **Save** to save any changes that have been made or **Cancel** to cancel the action and exit the page without making any changes.



Note: All Group information fields can be edited at any time with additional or updated information. The **Edit** button is required to update the Group information fields.



Tip: After editing a record and saving your updates, click the **Refresh** button to make sure our changes are displayed.

1.2.5 Groups: Delete a Group Record

To make an existing Group record "Inactive" or delete a Group record, select **Users & Groups: Groups**, and select the Group you wish to edit. When the Group record is displayed, click the **Edit** button. At the **Status** field, select **Inactive** or **Request Delete**. Click the **Save** button to activate your change.

USERS & GROUPS: GROUP EDIT			
* Group Name:	*The McTestsons		
Description:	What a wonderful family!		
Group Banner:	BON × *		
Mobile:	0 (Asset Id. The asset MUST be a PNG image)		
Mobile Tablets:	0 (Asset Id. The asset MUST be a PNG image)		
Group Email:			
Group Forum:	The Most Important Forum		
Group Catalog:	Create		
Foreign Id:			
Status:	O Active O Inactive O Request Delete		
Custom Fields			
🖹 Save 🖉 Cance	4		

Figure 1-46 – Users & Groups: Inactive Group Status

The Status field will now be highlighted in **Yellow** (indicating Inactive) or **Pink** (indicating Request delete) in the Group Record.

USERS & GROUPS: GROUP					
Information	on Assignments	Recommendations	Mobile		
Group Id:	2485				
Group Name:	*The McTestsons				
Description:	What a wonderful fa	amily!			
Group Banner:	Group Banner: BON				
Mobile:	Mobile:				
Mobile Tablets:	Mobile Tablets:				
Group Email:					
Group Forum:	Group Forum: The Most Important Forum				
Foreign Id:					
Status: Deleted Requested by Nicole Ebel					
☑ Edit					

Figure 1-47 – Users & Groups: Delete Group Status

For Request delete status changes, the record will show the requested deletion, the date/time, and who requested it. Click the **List** button to return to the Group List.

Notice that the Group's name is no longer included in the list of Groups. If the list's Filter is changed to show "All" group status conditions, the group will display in the list, highlighted in the appropriate yellow or pink color to alert others as to the status of the group record. The Group name will also be excluded from any lists of Available Groups when Administrators are making assignments.



Note: Deletion tasks can only be performed by a Site or Root Administrator. When an item's status is changed to "Request delete", an Administrator reviews the request to ensure there is no need for it before performing the delete function (Administration tab > Deletion Tasks option.)

1.3 Users & Groups: Job Codes

The third option under the main **Users & Groups** top-level Menu is **Job Codes**. This selection displays the **Users & Groups: Job Codes** List, a listing of all current Job Code assignments defined in the Course Manager database. From this list, you may:

- 1. Select a Job Code record from the List to review or edit
- 2. Enter one or more letters or numbers into the Filter Name field as a quick filter option
- 3. Use the Filter button for more search options to look for a specific Job Code
- 4. Click the Add Job Code button to create a new Job Code

USERS	USERS & GROUPS: JOB CODES						
+ Add	+ Add Job Code						
T Fil	T Filter Id Name Q Apply T _x						
Id	Job Code	Description	Status				
1006	Administrator	Site, Document or Content Administrators as well as Course Coordinators and Event Managers.	Active				
989	Android Learner	Learner of the Android Widget realm.	Active				
988	Apple Learner	Learner of the Apple Widget realm (iPad, iPod, iPhone).	Active				

Figure 1-48 – Users & Groups: Job Codes- Job Codes Table

Job Codes are listed alphabetically by Job Code Name, or numerically if Job Code names begin with numerals. The Job Code list displays the following:

	Users & Groups: Job Code Table Display					
Element	Description					
Id Number:	The OnPoint Id record number for the Job Code. This field is auto-generated by the System.					
Job Code Name:	The name of the Job Code.					
Description:	A description of the Job Code.					
Status:	Designates the Status of the specified Job Code. Job Codes can be Active, Inactive, or Marked for deletion. The Job Code List is automatically set to filter and display by those with a status of "Active". This filter can be changed using the Filter button.					

How are Job Codes useful in the OnPoint LMS?

Job Codes are a variation on the Group function in the OnPoint LMS, and provide an additional or alternative way to work with members of a defined classification of users/learners. Typically, Job Codes represent the type of job or business function being performed. Your HR department may have existing/established Job Codes in use in their payroll or other HRIS systems, and OnPoint recommends utilizing the same or similar code be used within the LMS. Job Codes in the LMS can be used to:

- A. Make assignments more efficiently (it is faster to assign something to all users/learners of a specific Job Code than individually)
- B. Send automated notifications to members of a specific Job Code
- C. Create specific reports at a Job Code level

Job Codes share the same database table as Groups in the OnPoint LMS platform, and are similar to Groups in that one or more Job Code designations can be made to a user/learner in the OnPoint system, and one can be labeled a "primary". Though individuals are normally a member of a number of different Groups, typically they will have just one Job Code; an exception occurs in the case of an employee who works in multiple positions – in which case they may have several Job Codes. A "primary" Job Code designation would be used to designate the

primary employee function, so that automated assignments of Skill Profiles would be made based on that primary Job Code rather than on any secondary job responsibility the user may have.

The key reason to establish Job Codes in the LMS is to facilitate the automatic assignment of unique Skill Profiles developed for specific Job Codes. Let's work with Bank Tellers, for example. If you regularly have new tellers joining your financial institution, it is likely that they will all need to take a prescribed training curriculum when they are first hired. Let's say you have 15 assignments you'd like all new tellers to complete (maybe 2 online courses, 3 ILT Events, 3 Assessment Sets, 4 Nuggets, and 3 Activities). Rather than trying to manually assign all 15 assignments to each individual hired, you could create a Skill Profile called "New Hire – Tellers" and assign all 15 assignments to that profile. Then, as each new teller is hired, they are imported into the OnPoint system with a designated Job Code (e.g. Teller-01). Upon import, the LMS could auto-assign the Skill Profile New Hire – Tellers to that user, ensuring that when they first log in to the Learning Center, they will already have all of the appropriate assignments awaiting them.

Assignments of Skill Profiles to Job Codes can be made directly (manually) at the Job Code level, or an automated scenario (as described above) can be set up to happen during regular user import feeds for integrated system implementations. In the case of a user having multiple Job Codes, the system will make the automatic skill profile assignment(s) to the users "primary" Job Code.

In the OnPoint system, they are typically several ways to accomplish tasks. For example, you may choose to also have a Group called Tellers in the LMS to facilitate communications with all Tellers. Assignments can be made directly at the group level as well. Since the Job Codes and Groups share the same database table, automated notifications and report filtering can be accomplished at the Job Code level as well as the Group level.

1.3.1 Job Codes: View a Job Code

The **Users & Groups: Job Codes** record display provides a brief description of all the particulars of an established Job Code. To view and edit a Job Code record, select the Job Code you wish to view from the list of **Users & Groups: Job Codes** by clicking on the Job Code and the **Users & Groups: Job Code** record for that resource will appear. The displayed screen shows the Job Code Information page along with Action Buttons.



Figure 1-49 - Users & Groups: Job Codes- Job Code Record

The Job Code record has two Submenu tabs covering all of the definitions and parameters for the selected Job Code, as follows:

- A. Job Code Information Tab 1 "Job Code Information" includes editable fields for Job Code Id, Name, Description and the current Status.
- B. **Assignments -** Tab 2 "Assignments" lists all of the current Assignments for that Job Code, including Courses, Assessment Sets, Nuggets, Activities, Events, Skill Profiles/Curriculums, Forums, Mobile UI's and OPUI's assignments, Group Managers, along with assigned Users. Many of these assignment fields may be manually updated at any time by clicking the corresponding **Assign** links.
- C. Recommendations Tab 3 "Recommendations" lists all of the current Recommendations for that Job Code, including all of their Courses, Assessment Sets, Nuggets, Activities, Events, and Skill Profile/Curriculum assignments. These recommendation fields may be manually updated at any time by

clicking the **Recommend** link, and removed when desired. Recommended items will show who made the recommendation, the date it was made, and also allow reinforcement.

Action buttons that appear across the lower portion of the Job Code Information page include the **Edit** which will allow you to view and edit the data fields for your selected record, the **Refresh** which allows you to refresh the page with recent updates if needed, the **List** option which will return you to the previous listing that you were working from, and the Login Action button which allows you to create action on next login such as change password, show profile, etc.

1.3.2 Job Codes: Search for a Job Code

Under **Users & Groups: Job Codes** is a list of all current Job Codes in your Course Manager repository. To find a specific job code, you may:

- 1. Scroll through the list until you locate the job code record
- 2. Enter one or more letters of the Job Code Name in the Name field to narrow your search
- 3. Use the Filter button to narrow your search for a specific job code

Advanced Job Cod	e Filter					
Job Code Id:	Equals	Ŧ				
Job Code Name:	Includes	•				
Description:	Includes	•				
Date Created:	On/After	•				
Status:	Equals	•	Active	* *		
Month	Equals	Ŧ		Ψ		
Q Apply X	Close				Use Defaults	Tx

Figure 1-50 – Users & Groups: Job Code Filter Selection Screen

The Job Code Filter allows you to search for a job code by any of the following search criteria:

Users & Groups: Job Code Filter Selection Screen					
Element	Description				
	 Use the drop down menu for additional filter options: equals - filters for a match of a letter or text string. begins with - filters for all job codes beginning with the criteria (e.g. type an A and get a list of all job codes beginning with A). includes - filters for all job codes that include the criteria (e.g. type "Sales Rep" and get all job codes that include that word). ends with - filters for all job codes ending with the criteria. not equal to - filters out everything matching this entry (e.g. type an A and no job codes beginning with A will display). less than - filters all matches less than the criteria. 				
Job Code Id:	The OnPoint Id record number for the Job Code. This field is auto-generated by the system.				
Job Code Name:	Search by the name of the job code.				
Description:	Search by the description of the job code. Use the drop-down menu as described above, then enter some descriptive data.				
Date Created:	Search for any job code created on /after or before a specific date.				
Group Status:	Search by the job code's status (Active, Inactive, or Delete requested).				

When you are finished entering your selection criteria you can select **Apply** to apply the filters to the group list, select **Default** to reset the filter to the default setting, which is Active Group Status with Group names that begin with "A" or use the **Close** link to close the filter window.

The **I** icon will clear all filters and is available on this filter screen or at the top of the list on the **Users & Groups: Groups** page.

1.3.3 Job Codes: Create a New Job Code

To create a new Job Code record, select **Users & Groups: Job Codes**, then click the **Add** button. The **Users & Groups: Job Code Edit** screen will appear.

USERS & GROUPS: JOB CODE EDIT	
* Job Code:	
Description:	,
Group Forum: 🗌 Create	
Group Catalog: 🗌 Create	
Foreign Id:	
Status: 💿 Active 🔿 Inactive 🔿 Re	quest Delete
Custom Fields	
Month:	¥
🖺 Save 🖉 Cancel	

Figure 1-51 – Users & Groups: Job Code Add Record

Complete the following data fields that are appropriate:

Users & Groups: Group Add Record				
Element	Description			
Job Code:	Enter the name of the Job Code. (Required Field)			
Description: Enter a description of the Job Code.				
Group Forum:	Click the checkbox to auto create a forum for this group.			
Group Catalog:	Click the checkbox to auto create a catalog for this group.			
Foreign Id:** Optional Id used to tie a user to another system of record.				
Status: Enter the status of the Job Code. The default is Active. • Active (Job Code is active) • Inactive (Job Code is not active) • Request Delete (Job Code record is no longer needed)				

At anytime during this edit you may click **Save** to save any changes that have been made or **Cancel** to cancel the action and exit the page without making any changes.

Note: All Job Code information fields can be edited at any time with additional or updated info. The **Edit** button is required to update the Job Code information fields. After entering a new record and saving your entries, click the **Refresh** button to make sure all your new entries are displayed.

1.3.3.1 New Job Code: Job Code Information

Once an Administrator has created and saved a new Job Code record, the **Users & Groups: Job Code** screen will display, including several sub-tabs that define the Job Code. The default view is the Job Code Information tab.

Action buttons that appear across the lower portion of the Job Code Information page include the **Edit** which will allow you to view and edit the data fields for your selected record, the **Refresh** which allows you to refresh the page with recent updates if needed, the **List** option which will return you to the previous listing that you were working from, and the Login Action button which allows you to create action on next login such as change password, show profile, etc.

1.3.3.2 New Job Code: Assignments

Once a new Job Code record has been created and defined, Administrators may want to add assignments to the Job Code manually. Assignments can include Courses, Assessment Sets, Nuggets, Activities, Events, Skill Profiles/Curriculums, Forums, Mobile UI's & OPUI's, Group Managers and Assigned Users. Since the newly created job code has just been defined, no assignments will be displayed initially.

Tip: If your organization has the OnPoint LMS integrated with an internal HRIS or other system that regularly feeds user import detail, those imports may automatically drive user assignments so that they do not need to be made via a group-based association. It may be that you will not need to make manual assignments to groups here under this sub-tab. For example, if a New Hire Orientation Skill Profile is created with 10 courses in it, and that Skill Profile is assigned to a Job Code 63 (New Hires), then all members of that job code will be automatically assigned all ten courses in the Skill Profile. No manual assignments would need to be made here at the Group level.

If you do need to make assignments at the Job Code level, click the corresponding Assign link.

Job Code: Android Learner (Id:989)		
Assigned Courses	Assign	
Assigned Assessment Sets	Assign	
Assigned Nuggets	Assign	
Assigned Activities	Assign	
Assigned Events	Assign	
Assigned Skill Profiles / Curriculums	Assign	
Assigned Forums		
Assigned Mobile UI's & OPUI's		
Group Managers		
Assigned Users	Assign	View
8 user(s)		

Figure 1-52 – Users & Groups: Job Code - Assignments tab

	• · · · · ·					~ .	
The	Assignment tal	n displays f	the assu	inments for	the lob	Code	including
	/ looiginnene ca	s alopiayo (abbig	granica ror	010 505	couc,	meraamigi

Users & Groups: Group Assignments					
Element	Description				
Assigned Courses:	Assign the Courses you want any user with a specific Job Code to be assigned to take. Click the Assign link to add a new Course assignments. Course assignments are selected by clicking the checkbox next to the desired course(s) from the right-hand column (it is possible to assign more than one course at a time). For environments with multitudes of available courses, a Filter button is available that can help you narrow the available list. Click the Assign or Unassign button to commit the assignments. Click the Finished button to exit and return to the Assignments sub-tab.				
Assigned Assessment Sets:	Assign the standalone Assessment Sets. Follow the instructions as detailed above.				
Assigned Nuggets:	Assign any Nuggets. Follow the instructions as detailed above.				
Assigned Activities:	Assign any Activities. Follow the instructions as detailed above.				
Assigned Events:	Assign any Events. Click the Assign link to add a new Event assignment. Event assignments are selected by clicking the desired event from the right-hand column. This will automatically assign it and move it to the left-hand column. To remove an event, simply select the event from the left-hand column and it will automatically return to the Available Events list on the right-hand side.				
Assigned Skill Profiles/Curriculums:	Assign any Skill Profiles. Follow the instructions as detailed above in Assigned Courses.				
Catalog Assignments:	Assign any Catalogs. Follow the instructions as detailed above in Assigned Courses.				
Assigned Forums:	Auto populated to show the admin any assigned forums.				
Assigned Mobile UI's & OPUI's:	Auto populated to show the admin any assigned Mobile UI's or OPUI's.				
Group Managers:	Auto populated to show the admin any assigned group managers.				
Assigned Users:	Assign any users the Job Code. Follow the instructions as detailed above in Assigned Courses.				

USERS & GROUPS: ASSIGN COURSES Group: *The McTestsons (Id:2485)	Unassign)	Assign Check items to assign or remove and click either Assign or Unassign
Assigned Courses (check to unassign)		Available Courses (click to assign) Tilter
		 **Brightstar sample course for MSC Mobility 10 Ignition Sources to be aware of - Affiliated FM Podcast 10 Important Activities to Perform When High Winds Threaten - Affiliated FM Podcast

Figure 1-53 - Users & Groups: Job Codes- Assign Course(s) to Job Code

Using Filters When Assigning Users to Job Codes

When making the Job Code's User assignments, use the filters to help you quickly find the users you need. The system defaults to a filter selection "A", on the Available Users (right) column. You can change the letter you wish to filter on by using the input fields within the filter pop-up window. For a larger number of users, clearing the filters is not recommended.

1.3.4 Job Codes: Edit a Job Code Record

To Edit an existing Job Code record, select the Job Code you wish to edit from the list of **Users & Groups: Job Codes** by clicking on the Job Code. The Job Code record will display, defaulted on the Job Code Information subtab page.

Action buttons that appear across the lower portion of the Job Code Information page include the **Edit** which will allow you to view and edit the data fields for your selected record, the **Refresh** which allows you to refresh the page with recent updates if needed, and the **List** option which will return you to the previous listing that you were working from.

Click the **Edit** button to make any updates to the Job Code record.

USERS & GRO	JPS: JOB CODE EDIT			
* Job Code:	Administrator			
Description:	Site, Document or Content Administrators as well as Course Coordinators and Event Managers.			
Group Forum:	Create			
Group Catalog:	Create			
Foreign Id:				
Status:	O Active ○ Inactive ○ Request Delete			
Custom Fields				
Month:	.			
🖺 Save	O Cancel			

Figure 1-54 - Users & Groups: Job Codes- Job Code Edit page

At anytime during this edit you may click **Save** to save any changes that have been made or **Cancel** to cancel the action and exit the page without making any changes.



Tip: After editing a record and saving your updates, click the **Refresh** button to make sure all your changes are displayed.



Note: All Job Code information fields can be edited at any time with additional or updated information. The **Edit** button is required to update the Job Code information fields.

1.3.5 Job Codes: Delete a Job Code Record

To make an existing Job Code record "Inactive" or "Request delete" a Job Code record, select **Users & Groups: Job Codes**, and select the Job Code you wish to edit. When the Job Code record is displayed, click the **Edit** button. At the **Status** field, select **Inactive** or **Request delete**. Click the **Save** button to activate your change.

The Status field will now be highlighted in **Yellow** (Inactive) or **Pink** (Request delete) in the Job Code.

USERS & GROUPS: JOB CODE						
Information	Assignments	Recommendations				
Job Code Id:	1006					
Job Code Name:	Administrator					
Description:	Description: Site, Document or Content Administrators as well as					
	Course Coordinato	rs and Event Managers	5.			
Group Forum:						
Foreign Id:						
Status:	Deleted Requeste	ed by Nicole Ebel				
C Edit	Refresh 4 Li	ist				

Figure 1-55 – Users & groups: Job Codes- Delete Job Code Status

For Request delete status changes, the record will show the requested deletion, the date/time, and who requested it.

Click the List button to return to the Job Code List.

Notice that the Job Code's name is no longer included in the list of Job Codes. To change the list's Filter to show all job code status conditions, select the "x" to remove the current filter and click **Apply**. The previously deleted Job Code will now display in the list, highlighted in the appropriate yellow or pink color to alert others as to the status of the group record. The Job Code name will also be excluded from any lists of Available Job Codes when Administrators are making assignments.



Note: Deletion tasks can only be performed by a Site or Root Administrator. When an item's status is changed to "Request delete", an Administrator reviews the request to ensure there is no need for it before performing the delete function (Administration tab > Deletion Tasks option.)

1.4 Users & Groups: Locations

When you select locations from the **Users & Groups** menu, the **Locations** list will display, showing a list of all current Organization Charts defined in the Course Manager database. From this list, you may:

Users & Groups: Locations				
Element:	Description			
Expand:	Expands the tree to show all sub levels of the locations.			
Collapse:	Collapses the tree to show all main levels of the locations.			
Add-Base- Location:	Adds a location to the Root Menu.			



Figure 1-56 – Users & Groups: Locations

Using Locations to assign Content.

LOCATION				
Location Id: 510 Path: Name: New Zealand Description: Address:		Custom Fields Evil Genius Lair? (Y/N): Number:		
☑ Edit			Add Child Location	Move Copy
Course Assignments	Assign			
Direct Assignments *** Blue Book Course AASCORM Cricket Utility		Inherited Assignments		
Assessment Set Assignments	Assign			
Direct Assignments		Inherited Assignments		
Nugget Assignments	Assign			
Direct Assignments		Inherited Assignments		
Activity Assignments	Assign			
Direct Assignments		Inherited Assignments		
Skill Profile/Curriculum Assignments	Assign			
Direct Assignments		Inherited Assignments		
User Assignments	Assign			
Directly Assigned 2				

Figure 1-57 – Users & Groups: Locations/Content

	Users & Groups: Location Assignments
Element	Description
Course Assignments:	Click the Assign link to add new Course assignments to any user with the specified Job Code. Choose from a list of available courses on the right, or use the Filter button to narrow the list of choices. Course assignments are selected by clicking the checkbox next to the desired course(s) from the right-hand column (it is possible to assign more than one course at a time). Click the Assign or Unassign button to commit the assignments. Click the Finished button to exit and return to the Assignments sub-tab.
Assessments Sets Assignments:	Assign any stand-alone Assessments. Follow the instructions as detailed above.
Nuggets Assignments:	Assign any Nuggets. Follow the instructions as detailed above.
Activity Assignments:	Assign any Activities. Follow the instructions as detailed above.
Skill Profiles/Curriculum Assignments:	Assign any Skill Profiles/Curriculum. Follow the instructions as detailed above.
User Assignments:	Assign any Users to the Job Code classification. Follow the instructions as detailed above.

The lower half of the **Location** screen displays the assignments for the Location, including:

1.5 Users & Groups: Organization Chart

When you select Organization Chart from the **Users & Groups** menu, the **Organization Chart** list will display, showing a list of all current Organization Charts defined in the Course Manager database.

From this list, you may:

Users & Groups: Organization Chart				
Element:	Description			
Expand:	Expands the tree to show all sub levels of the Organization Chart.			
Collapse:	Collapses the tree to show all main levels of the Organization Chart.			
Add-Base- Location:	Adds a location to the Root Menu. Fields include Org Chart Name, and Description.			

ORGANIZATION CHART					
+ Add Base Item	Expand	💉 Collapse			
+ HQ + OnPoint New Zeala O thing	nd				

Figure 1-58 – Users & Groups-Organizational Charts

ORGANIZAT	TION CHART					
Org Chart Id:	6906					
Path:	HQ » Satellite Office A					
Name:	Office A - Blue Building					
Manager:	<u>1, Manager</u>					
Description:						
C Edit	C Refresh			+ Add Child Item	X Move	Сору
User Assig	iments A	ssign				

Figure 1-59 – Users & Groups-Organizational Charts

Selecting the Manager field assigns a manager to the Organization chart.

Selecting the **Assign** link next to the user assignments field allows for users to be assigned to this Organization chart.

1.6 Users & Groups: Announcements

The sixth submenu option under the primary Users & Groups top-level menu is Announcements. Announcements are messages that can be defined within OnPoint to be displayed to certain Groups of users when they login to the OnPoint Portal. Announcements appear in a "portlet" on the main Portal page; when a user clicks on an Announcement link, a pop-up window opens displaying the announcement message and the name of its author.

When you select Announcements from the Users & Groups menu, the **Users & Groups: Announcements** list will display, showing a list of all current Announcements defined in the Course Manager database. From this list, you may:

- 1. Select an Announcement record from the list to review or edit
- 2. Click the Add Announcement button to create a new Announcement

USERS & GROUPS: ANNOUNCEMENTS + Add Announcement Show Current								
Name	Display Start	Display End	Job Code	Author	Urgent			
Everyone								
This is a new anouncement	13-Jul-2016	13-Aug-2016	All	Farrar, Shane	No			
Test	08-Jan-2016	08-Feb-2016	All	Daniel Swain	No			
UNDEFINED	07-Aug-2015	07-Sep-2015	All	Daniel Shinall	No			

Figure 1-60 – Users & Groups: Announcements

Announcements are listed alphabetically by Announcement Name and organized by Group designation. The Announcement list displays the following:

Users & Groups: Announcements				
Element	Description			
Name:	Name of the Announcement.			
Display Start:	The date and time the Announcement is to begin being displayed to the users.			
Display End:	The date and time the Announcement should finish displaying to the users.			
Job Code:	Displays which job codes are associated to the Announcement			
Author:	Name of the Announcement's author. The name will appear on the announcements viewed by the user.			
Urgent:	Yes/No			

1.6.1 Announcements: View an Announcement Record

The **Users & Groups: Announcements** record is a detailed description of all the particulars of an Announcement. To view and edit an Announcement record, select the Announcement you wish to view from the list of **Users & Groups: Announcements** and the **Users & Groups: Announcements** record for that resource will appear. The displayed screen shows the Announcement detail as follows:

1. **Announcement Information** begins at the top of the screen including fields for Display Start and End times, Group designation, Job Code, Name/Title (**Required Field**), Announcement text, Author, Urgent, and Show in OPCM. Simply edit the Announcement information as necessary, and click the **Save** button.

USERS & GROUPS: ANNOUNCEMENT EDIT						
Please specify the o announcement will	lisplay starting and end dates and times for this announcement. You may also choose a specific group or job code and the be limited to members of the specified group and users assigned to the job code.					
Display Start: Display End: Group: Job Code:	13-Jul-2016					
* Name/Title:	This is a new anouncement					
* Announcement: <u>Html Editor</u> <u>View Message</u>	This is a new anouncement					
Author:	Farrar, Shane					
Urgent: O Yes O No Urgent announcements will be displayed on portal login						
🗈 Save 🖉 Cancel 🗋 Delete this announcement 🖻 🚯 Tips						

[See Announcements: Edit an Announcement Record in the next section for more detailed help.]

Figure 1-61 – Users & Groups: Announcement Record

1.6.2 Announcements: Create a New Announcement

To create a new Announcement record, click the **Add Announcement** button at the top of the list of **Users & Groups: Announcements**; a new Announcement record screen will appear.

USERS & GROUP	PS: ANNOUNCEMENT EDIT	
Please specify the	display starting and end dates and times for this announcement. You may also choose a specific group or job code and the	2
announcement will	be limited to members of the specified group and users assigned to the job code.	
Display Start:	16-Jun-2017 🛱 🖉 Midnight * : 00 *	
Display End:	16-Jul-2017 🛱 ⊘ Midnight 🔹 : 00 🔹	
Group:		
Job Code:	All	
* Name/Title:		
* Announcement:		
Author:	Ebel, Nicole	
Urgent:	Vec. 2 No. Urgent appoincements will be displayed on portal login	
orgent.		
🖹 Save 🖉	Cancel	1 Tips

Figure 1-62 - Users & Groups: Add New Announcement Record
Enter the following data fields:

Users & Groups: Add New Announcement Record						
Element	Description					
Display Start:	Enter the date the Announcement should begin displaying to the users.					
Display End:	Enter the date the Announcement should finish displaying to the users.					
Group:	Select the Group designation for the Announcement. Choose the Group from the drop down list of choices. All members of that Group will see the Announcement in the Portal. You may also choose the default setting All to allow the Announcement to be seen by all users, regardless of their group association.					
Job Code:	Drop down menu to associate a job code to the announcement. You may also choose the default setting All to allow the Announcement to be seen by all users, regardless of their job code.					
Name/Title:	Enter the Name or Title of the Announcement. (Required Field)					
Announcement:	Enter the actual text of the Announcement itself.					
Author:	Enter the name of the Author of the Announcement. This name will appear at the end of the Announcement text in the Portal pop-up window.					
Urgent:	Yes or No					

At anytime during this edit you may click **Save** to save any changes that have been made or **Cancel** to cancel the action and exit the page without making any changes.



Note: All Announcement information fields can be edited at any time with additional or updated information.

1.6.3 Announcements: Edit an Announcement Record

To edit an existing Announcement record, select the Announcement you wish to edit from the list of **Users & Groups: Announcements**. At anytime during this edit you may click **Save** to save any changes that have been made or **Cancel** to cancel the action and exit the page without making any changes.

1.6.4 Announcements: Delete an Announcement Record

To delete an existing Announcement record, select **Users & Groups: Announcements**, then select the Announcement you wish to delete from the list by clicking on the Announcement.

From the **Users & Groups: Announcement Edit** screen, select the **Delete this announcement** checkbox in the bottom right corner. Click the **Save** button to activate your change.

USERS & GROUP	S: ANNOUNCEMENT EDIT					
Please specify the display starting and end dates and times for this announcement. You may also choose a specific group or job code and the announcement will be limited to members of the specified group and users assigned to the job code.						
Display Start: Display End: Group: Job Code: * Name/Title: * Announcement: <u>Html Editor</u> <u>View Message</u>	13-Jul-2016 Midnight * 13-Aug-2016 Midnight * All * All * This is a new anouncement * This is a new anouncement *					
Author: Urgent:	Farrar, Shane O Yes No Urgent announcements will be displayed on portal login					
🖺 Save 🔗	Cancel					

Figure 1-63 – Users & Groups: Delete Announcement

1.7 Users & Groups: Reports

The **Users & Groups: Reports** drop down selection provides several pre-designed reports of Users & Groups stored in your Course Manager repository. Reports are listed alphabetically by Report Name. Click on the Report you wish to view.

The following is a list of the current Reports. Additional Reports created as jsp's or custom reports purchased from OnPoint can be added to this list using the Manage Reports function under the Administration menu.

R	REPORTS: User & Group Reports							
	No Report Name Report T		Report Title	Description	Туре			
602 A		Assessment Set Completion Status	Assessment Set Completion Status	Displays all users who have completed a specified Assessment Set, for a selected date range,	Standard			
		Assignment Completion Percent Analysis by Primary Group	Assignment Completion Percent Analysis by Primary Group	This report displays a list of user assignments with individual assignment percentage completion analysis as well as total analysis for all assignments completed by a user within a date range. The report specifies a Primary Group, but can report on one or all Groups.	Standard			
	600	Assignment Completion Time Analysis by Primary Group	Assignment Completion Time Analysis by Primary Group	This report displays a list of user assignments with individual assignment time analysis as well as total time analysis for all assignments completed by a user within a date range. The report specifies a Primary Group, but can report on one or all Groups.	Standard			
	606	Course Time Summary	Course Time Summary	Course Time Summary	Standard			

Figure 1-64A – Users & Groups: Reports List

Most reports have one or more filter options that assist in narrowing the results as desired.

Course Time Summary	close
Course Time Summary	
Course Status: - All - User Status: Active User Role: - All - User Role: - All - Or check desired roles Administrators (Site Administrators, Content Administrators, Course Coordinators, Event Managers, Document Administrators) Managers (Group Managers, Reporting Managers) Users/Learners Records	
Start Date: 🔤 🧰 (mm/dd/yyyy)	
End Date: 🔛 🔛 (mm/dd/yyyy)	
Generate Report	

Figure 1-64B – Users & Groups: Select Report Criteria

Select your Report criteria from the available drop-down menu options, and click the **Generate Report** button to run the report. The report results will display with the OPLS Report Viewer in a pop-up window.

OPLS Report Viewer	Page 1 of 3	41 4 P	I 4		🚔 🖏 🖻 back clos		
Course Time Summary Course Status: All User Status: Ative User Status: Ative User Role; Site Admin, Content Admin, Course Coord., Event Manager, Doc Admin, Group Manager, Rpt. Manager, User, Date Barnes 14/07000_8/26/2014							
Course	Course Status	Assigned Users	Active Users	Total Time	Mean Time		
101 - Proliance	Active	37	1	00:00:04	00:00:04		
101 Introduction to Proliance	Active	19	5	00:00:20	00:00:04		
102 Business Process Management and Workflow	Active	6	2	00:01:35	00:00:47		
126AE - Grill Skills	Active	7	7	00:04:31	00:00:38		
A-101a-Starting as a Forecaddie Course	Active	47	2	00:01:22	00:00:41		
AARP Health Care Options - Product Training	Active	18	1	00:02:03	00:02:03		
AB skillsoft course333	Active	4	1	00:00:09	00:00:09		
Accusport Sample Course	Active	7	3	00:06:50	00:02:16		
Acosta Sample Course	Active	36	4	00:11:56	00:02:59		
Alex's Training Course	Active	4	1	00:00:34	00:00:34		
All About Logan Monkey	Active	2	2	00:01:39	00:00:49		
AML Community Bank Course	Active	5	1	00:01:01	00:01:01		
Articulate Sample Course	Active	1	2	00:00:24	00:00:12		
BBS Sales Field Training Test	Active	37	16	00:09:04	00:00:34		
Belden Sample Camtasia Course	Active	3	7	00:07:18	00:01:02		
BlackBerry Content - Productivity Tips	Active	2	5	00:01:08	00:00:13		

Figure 1-64C – Users & Groups: Sample Report

Output Data to Spreadsheets

The Output Data to Spreadsheets utility allows you to dump all of the data in a selected database table to a CSV file.

The CSV file can be **Printed**, **Exported** to CSV or as a **PDF**.

Note: This functionality is only available in Course Manager, and not in Performance Manager; even if the report is specified to be available in Performance Manager, this icon does not display.

OPLS Report Viewer	Page 1 of 9 📢 🌒 🕪		🔁 🚔 🛒	back close		
Group Members by Create Date			OnPoint I	Digital, Inc.		
Group: All			11 Jul 201	6 11:22:26 AM		
User Status: Active						
User Role: Site Admin, Content Admin, Course Coord, Event Manager, Doc Admin, Group Manager, Rpt. Manager, User, Learner						
Date Range: 1/1/1970 - 02/01/2099						

Figure 1-65A – Users & Groups: Reports Table – Output Data to Spreadsheet Icon